
 

Page 1 of 3 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

THURSDAY                          TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
JANUARY 18, 2024 – 6:00 P.M.     4300 S. ATLANTIC AVENUE, PONCE INLET, FL 

SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one 
or more members of the Town’s various boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall. 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

3. ROLL CALL. 

NOTE: Citizens who wish to speak during Public Participation about any subject that is not on the meeting 
agenda should fill out the Citizen Participation Request form and submit it to the Town Clerk prior to the 
start of the meeting.   

4. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA. 

5. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS:   

A. Proclamations report. 

B.  Presentation on World Encephalitis Day. – Kay Atwood  

C.  Recognition of Kim Bressett for being selected as Ponce Inlet Employee of the 
Year. 

6.  CONSENT AGENDA - Items on the consent agenda are defined as routine in nature that do not 
warrant detailed discussion or individual action by the Council; therefore, all items remaining on the 
consent agenda shall be approved and adopted by a single motion, second and vote by the Town Council. 
Items on the consent agenda are not subject to discussion. Any member of the Town Council may remove 
any item from the consent agenda simply by verbal request at the Town Council meeting. Removing an 
item from the consent agenda does not require a motion, second or a vote; it would simply be a unilateral 
request of an individual Council member and this item would then be added as the last item under New 
Business. As with all agenda items, the public will have the opportunity to comment prior to a motion being 
placed on the floor and their comment(s) may persuade Council to remove the item from the Consent 
Agenda and place under New Business for discussion. 

A. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes – December 18, 2023. 

7. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
MEETING: 



1/18/24 Regular Council Meeting 
      

  Page 2 of 3 

A. Appointment to the Code Enforcement Board. 

B. Appointments to the Planning Board. 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 

9.   PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS:  

 A. Final Development Plan: #37-2023; review of final site development plan for the 
Learning Center expansion at the Marine Science Center, 100 Lighthouse Dr.; per 
Sec 6.6.6 of the LUDC. 

10.   CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens 
via a variety of means. This is an opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively on any subject that 
is not identified on the meeting agenda. The Town’s Rules for Conducting Town Council meetings are set 
forth in Resolution 2021-11 and include the following guidelines: 

• Citizens are provided with 5 minutes at each meeting to speak on one or more issues that are not 
otherwise placed on the meeting agenda. 

• Please introduce yourself with your name and address clearly for the record. 
• Share with us your thoughts, ideas, and opinions; we want to hear them. 
• Under our rules, all questions and comments are directed to the Mayor. 

While some questions may be able to be addressed at this meeting, others may require research or more 
information than we have readily available from our staff, so we may have to defer the response to you 
until we have that information. Also, depending on the type of issue, we may place the matter on a properly 
noticed subsequent meeting agenda. As a Council, we welcome the opportunity to hear from you and hope 
you will speak with us not only during Citizen Participation but outside of these meetings. We understand 
the formal nature of this meeting, but rest assured, we want to hear from you, we want to address your 
concerns, and we are appreciative of your involvement. 

11. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS:   

A. Resolution 2024-01 – Supporting the Florida League of Cities’ Legislative Action 
Agenda for the 2024 Legislative Session. – requested by Mayor Paritsky 
 

B. Resolution 2024-02 – Amending the Town Council’s Rules of Order for Conducting 
Town Council Meetings. 

 
C. Resolution 2024-03 – Adoption of Town Council Goals for FY 23-24 and FY 24-25. 

12.  OLD BUSINESS: None. 

13. NEW BUSINESS: None. 

14.    FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL: 

A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 

B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 



1/18/24 Regular Council Meeting 
      

  Page 3 of 3 

C. Councilmember White, Seat #3 

D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 

E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 

15.  FROM THE TOWN MANAGER. 

16.  FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY. 

17.   CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens 
via a variety of means. This is another opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively for 2 minutes 
before closure of this meeting regarding reports provided by the Town Council, Town Manager, or Town 
Attorney in items 14-16 (only) of the meeting agenda. 

19.   ADJOURNMENT. 

Next Town Council Meeting date: 

• Thursday, February 15th, 2024, 6:00 p.m. 

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Town Council with respect to any matter considered at a 
meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and that for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based.  Persons who require accommodation in order to attend this meeting should contact the Ponce 
Inlet Town Hall at 236-2150 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to request such assistance. 



Report to Town Council 

Topic: Proclamations, Presentations, and Awards. 

Summary: 

A. Proclamations report.

B. Presentation of World Encephalitis Day

C. Recognition of Kim Bressett for Employee of Year.

Suggested motion:  None required. 

Requested by:   Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 1/18/2024 

Agenda Item:   5 



Item 5-A



Item 5-A



Item 5-A



Staff Memo to Town Manager 

MEMORANDUM 
Town of Ponce Inlet  

Human Resources / Town Clerk Department 
The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 

ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager  
From: Kim Cherbano, Human Resource Director/Town Clerk 
Date: January 8, 2024 
Subject: 2024 Employee of the Year  

Congratulations to Kim Bressett for being selected as Ponce Inlet’s Employee of the Year!  Kim 
was nominated and selected by her peers for this award.  Kim Bressett, or Kim B., as her peers call 
her, started working for the Town of Ponce Inlet as a Payroll Specialist/Utility Billing Assistant in 
February of 2021.  
Kim soon took on the extra responsibility of overseeing the Town’s Utility Billing system and the 
training of the new Utility Billing/Accounting Specialist that had no prior experience.  She stepped 
up to the plate and embraced the challenge quickly, learned system operations, and handled all 
issues in a professional and courteous manner. Her attention to detail and degree of accuracy were 
the driving force in her being able to assess and assist with other complex tasks. 

Kim is always seeking more responsibility and is constantly finding ways to improve not only 
herself, but the entire department. Her commitment and determination to assist our department has 
helped tremendously in accomplishing one of our Council goals to meet/exceed audit reporting 
requirements. She reviewed numerous audit schedules from the prior year and 
reconciled/completed many of the most complicated ones. Kim performed them accurately and 
without instruction. Kim’s initiative to assist the department with audit tasks resulted in another 
comment-free audit this year, which may not have occurred without her assistance.  Kim worked 
many additional hours to get the job done accurately.   

In addition to Kim’s regular duties, she assisted with the FEMA reimbursement grant work from 
Hurricanes Ian and Nicole, as well as other FEMA-related reconciliations and schedules.   

She further assisted the Planning & Development Department with the EnerGov 
upgrade/implementation through testing and reconciliation of the software system.  She performs 
account reconciliations daily and works extensively to resolve any issues that may arise. Kim is 
patient with everyone, has a strong work ethic and is a tremendous asset to the Town.   

Item 5-C



Report to Town Council 

Topic: Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Town Council regular meeting minutes –
December 18, 2023.

Summary: See attached minutes. 

Suggested motion: 
To approve the Consent agenda as presented. 

Requested by: Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 1/18/2024 

Agenda Item:  6 



Town Council December 18, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 7 

Town of Ponce Inlet 1 

Town Council 2 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3 

December 18, 2023 4 
5 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Pursuant to proper notice, Mayor Paritsky called the meeting to 6 
order at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida. 7 

8 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Paritsky led the Pledge of Allegiance; she 9 
reviewed the protocol for filling out the Citizens’ Participation request forms for agenda item #10. 10 

11 
3. ROLL CALL: 12 

Town Council: 13 
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 14 
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 15 
Councilmember White, Seat #3  16 
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 17 
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 18 

19 
Mayor Paritsky recognized Volusia County Council Member Matthew Reinhart as being present 20 
and invited him to speak. Council Member Reinhart provided an update on the Volusia County 21 
sand placement project. 22 

23 
Staff Members Present: 24 
Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 25 
Attorney Brackins, Town Attorney 26 
Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 27 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 28 
Ms. Gjessing, Permit Technician 29 
Chief Glazier, Police Chief 30 
Mr. Griffith, Public Works Director 31 
Ms. Hugler, Fire Department Office Manager 32 
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 33 
Mr. Okum, IT Manager 34 
Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 35 
Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 36 

37 
4. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS, OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA. There were 38 
no changes. 39 

40 
Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the agenda as presented; seconded by Councilmember Milano. 41 
The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 42 

43 
5. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS: 44 

Item 6-A



 

 
 
Town Council  December 18, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 7 

*Due to a timing conflict, item 5-A was presented last* 45 
 46 

A. Presentation of American Flood Coalition Leadership Award – Kate Wesner, 47 
Florida Director – Mayor Paritsky introduced Kate Wesner, Florida Director for the American 48 
Flood Coalition. The American Flood Coalition honored Mayor Paritsky for her leadership, public 49 
service, and commitment to finding solutions to flooding problems. She said Mayor Paritsky 50 
organized a roundtable with local elected officials to learn from State agencies how to plan for 51 
long-term resilience for their communities. Ms. Wesner thanked Mayor Paritsky for her continued 52 
commitment to protecting Ponce Inlet, congratulated her, and presented the award.   53 

 54 
B. Recognition of Ponce Inlet Christmas Parade Volunteer Event Coordinators: 55 

Mayor Paritsky presented Cherise Wintz and Mark Oebbecke with plaques for their efforts in 56 
coordinating the annual Ponce Inlet Christmas parade.  57 

 58 
C. Certificates of Appreciation – Ponce Preserve “Invasive Plant Pullers”: Mayor 59 

Paritsky presented Barabara Davis with a plaque to recognize her hard work and leadership in 60 
organizing the volunteer group; each volunteer from the “Invasive Plant Pullers” was presented 61 
with a Certificate of Appreciation. 62 

 63 
D. Certificate of Appreciation – Cathy Harvey for the “Check on Your Neighbor” 64 

Program: Mayor Paritsky presented Cathy Harvey with a Certificate of Appreciation in 65 
recognition of her efforts with the “Check on Your Neighbor” program. 66 

 67 
E. Certificates of Appreciation – 60th Anniversary Committee members: Mayor 68 

Paritsky presented each member of the committee with a Certificate of Appreciation for their 69 
efforts in coordinating the Ponce Inlet 60th Anniversary Celebration event.  70 

 71 
A. Presentation of Riverside Conservancy’s shoreline restoration project – Kelli 72 

McGee, Executive Director – Mayor Paritsky introduced Kelli McGee, Executive Director of 73 
Riverside Conservancy. Ms. McGee provided a PowerPoint presentation on the shoreline 74 
restoration project in Ponce Inlet. Over 2 miles have been restored by her group in the last 5 years 75 
along the Halifax River and Indian River lagoon. Ms. McGee explained the process of partnering 76 
with organizations or individuals. She explained the concept of “living shorelines” and how they 77 
can protect waterfront properties. Mayor Paritsky thanked Ms. McGee and opened questions to 78 
Council. Councilmember Milano asked Ms. McGee if they had anything to do with Daggett Island. 79 
Ms. McGee offered to submit a letter of services that could provide restoration efforts to the Town, 80 
which Mr. Disher and Mayor Paritsky accepted. Councilmember White asked that this be placed 81 
as an agenda item for review. Mayor Paritsky agreed that once the letter has been submitted and 82 
reviewed, it should be brought to Council.   83 
 84 
6. CONSENT AGENDA: Mayor Paritsky asked if there was any item Council would like to 85 
remove from the consent agenda; there were no requests. Mayor Paritsky asked for public 86 
comments – hearing none, she closed public comments. 87 
 88 

A. Town Council Regular meeting minutes – November 16, 2023. 89 



 

 
 
Town Council  December 18, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 7 

 90 
B. Town Council Special meeting minutes – November 29, 2023. 91 

 92 
C. Authorizing an extension of the 2022-23 Halifax Humane Society contract with 93 

the Town through June 30, 2024. 94 
 95 
Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; seconded by Councilmember 96 
Villanella. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 97 
 98 
7. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 99 
MEETING 100 
 101 

A. Appointments to the Code Enforcement Board. Ms. Cherbano reviewed the staff 102 
memorandum which outlined the Board’s membership, attendance log, and applicant’s 103 
information. Mr. Finch was present; Mr. Fuess was not. 104 
 105 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – hearing none, she closed public participation. 106 
 107 
Mayor Paritsky moved to re-appoint Peter Finch to Regular Seat #3, and Rick Fuess to Alternate 108 
Seat #1; seconded by Councilmember Villanella. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 109 
 110 

B.        Appointments to the Cultural Services, Historic Preservation, & Tree Advisory 111 
Board. Ms. Cherbano reviewed the staff memorandum which outlined the Board’s membership, 112 
attendance log, and applicant’s information. In addition to the re-appointments, Mr. Patton was 113 
seeking appointment to Alternate Seat #2. Ms. Kessler & Mr. Patton were present; Ms. Labarre 114 
and Mr. Shafer were not. 115 
 116 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation regarding the re-appointments – hearing none, she 117 
closed public participation. 118 
 119 
Mayor Paritsky moved to re-appoint Elvira Labarre to Regular Seat #1, Les Shafer to Regular 120 
Seat #3, and Jair Kessler to Alternate Seat #1; seconded by Councilmember Milano. The motion 121 
PASSED 5-0, consensus. 122 
 123 
Mr. Patton mentioned that he is looking forward to serving on the board again as he had to step 124 
down about a year ago. 125 
 126 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation– hearing none, she closed public participation. 127 
 128 
Mayor Paritsky moved to appoint Thomas Patton to Alternate Seat #2; seconded by 129 
Councilmember White. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 130 
 131 

C.        Appointments to the Essential Services Advisory Board. Ms. Cherbano reviewed 132 
the staff memorandum which outlined the Board’s membership, attendance log, and applicant’s 133 
information. Ms. Cherbano mentioned there are still three vacant Alternate seats on the board; 134 



 

 
 
Town Council  December 18, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 7 

Engineering, CPA/Financial, and Public Relations/Outreach/Human Resources. The applicants for 135 
re-appointment were not present. 136 
 137 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – hearing none, she closed public participation. 138 

 139 
Mayor Paritsky moved to re-appoint Ken Cox to Regular Seat #1, Christopher Pulver to Regular 140 
Seat #3, Chip Witt to Alternate Seat #1, and Jim Sustr to Alternate Seat #2; seconded by 141 
Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 142 
 143 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 144 
 145 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS:  146 
 147 

A.       Ordinance 2023-06 – Attorney Brackins read Ordinance 2023-06 by title only.  148 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, AMENDING 149 
CHAPTER 18 OF THE PONCE INLET CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO 150 
PERMITTING AND CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS; ADOPTING THE FLORIDA 151 
BUILDING CODE, 8th  EDITION (2023) TOGETHER WITH CERTAIN APPENDICES 152 
THERETO; ADOPTING THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTEANCE 153 
CODE; ADOPTING THE MOST RECENT EDITION OF THE NFPA 70 NATIONAL 154 
ELECTRICAL CODE (NEC); ADOPTING THE BUILDING OFFICIALS ASSOCIATION 155 
OF FLORIDA’S MODEL ADMINISTRATIVE CODE (2023) TOGETHER WITH 156 
CERTAIN ADDITIONS THERETO; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE TOWN 157 
MANAGER; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 158 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Mr. Disher 159 
explained that this is the second reading of the ordinance and that the Town and local governments 160 
are required to adopt by reference a new version of the Florida Building Code once updated by the 161 
Florida Building Commission. One change has been made condensing the verbiage in the Code of 162 
Ordinances regarding the new requirement to provide addressing from the beach, based on Council 163 
discussion at first reading. There was a discussion clarifying that the 120-day deadline is from the 164 
effective date of the ordinance. It was also stated that starting from Line 42, “address” would be 165 
changed to “address number” to clarify the requirements. There was a discussion on requiring the 166 
updated construction schedule be posted with permit paperwork; Mr. Disher stated that the 167 
schedule can be added to the permit paperwork issued by the Town. Council Member Reinhart 168 
stated that the idea for the beach address requirement originated from the County with the intention 169 
of public safety due to a medical emergency that arose in the Daytona Beach area. 170 
 171 
Councilmember Villanella moved to approve and adopt Ordinance 2023-06 as modified; seconded 172 
by Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED 5-0, with the following vote: Councilmember 173 
Villanella -yes; Councilmember Milano – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember White – yes; 174 
Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 175 
 176 
10. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION: Mayor Paritsky opened citizens participation: Jair 177 
Kessler, 81 Buschman Dr, stated she represents the Farmers Market and encouraged the Council 178 
and citizens to attend.   179 
 180 



 

 
 
Town Council  December 18, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 7 

Mayor Paritsky closed public participation. 181 
 182 
11. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS:  183 
 184 

A. Resolution 2023-17 - Attorney Brackins read Resolution 2023-17 by title only. 185 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA AMENDING RATES 186 
IN APPENDIX A OF THE TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART XI (SEWER 187 
SERVICE) AND PART XII (DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE FOR WATER AND 188 
SEWER SERVICE); PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 189 
CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 190 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. - Mr. Disher discussed the interlocal agreement 191 
between Port Orange and the Town regarding sewer service rates and the rise in sewer rates and 192 
impact fees. These fees are established by the City of Port Orange, and the Town serves as a 193 
collection agency for its residents. The water flushing process was discussed; it was clarified that 194 
the Town is not paying sewage on the periodic flushing of fire hydrants. Mayor Paritsky opened 195 
public participation. Cathy Harvey, 41 Loggerhead Ct, stated that at the end of Loggerhead Ct, 196 
there is a stench that comes up and they would like to know the reason and how it can be corrected. 197 
Mr. Griffith mentioned that it could be vapor coming from the connection through Port Orange. 198 
Vice Mayor Smith stated and there are ways of checking that proper ventilation is happening so 199 
the sewer gas is not coming through the vents. Mayor Paritsky closed public participation.        200 
 201 
Councilmember Villanella moved to approve Resolution 2023-17 as presented; seconded by 202 
Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with the following vote: Councilmember 203 
Villanella – yes; Councilmember Milano – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember White – 204 
yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 205 
 206 
12. OLD BUSINESS: None. 207 
 208 
13. NEW BUSINESS:  209 
 210 

A. Updated Town Council Goals List.  Mr. Disher discussed the annual update to 211 
the Town Council Goals. Councilmember White stated that he would like to see an emphasis on 212 
the Land Use and Development Code related to coastal resiliency issues, and Mr. Disher explained 213 
that the new Planning & Development Director is already working on it.  214 
 215 
Staff will revise the Goals list based on the discussion and bring the list back to Council for 216 
consideration and approval. 217 
 218 

B. Organizational discussion for Rules of Order and conducting Town Council 219 
meetings. Mayor Paritsky stated that it might be time to look at the existing rules to encourage 220 
greater public participation. Vice-Mayor Smith commented that it needs to be determined what 221 
point of day would engage the largest crowd. Councilmember White discussed the types of 222 
meetings that would require Council to meet at a specific time of day, and how that would affect 223 
the meeting times. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation. Jair Kessler, 81 Buschman Dr, 224 
mentioned that she knows a lot of people who do not attend the Council meetings due to the time 225 
they are held. Ms. Kessler proposed an afternoon start time; Cathy Harvey, 41 Loggerhead Ct, 226 



 

 
 
Town Council  December 18, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 7 

proposed that this item be brought to the next Town Hall meeting, or a survey should be conducted 227 
for input from other residents. It was also discussed whether the order of the agenda could be 228 
revised; Karen Rij, Ponce Inlet citizen, agreed that this should be discussed at the February Town 229 
Hall meeting, and then the consideration should be directed towards employees. They proposed a 230 
2:00 PM meeting time; Jim Hinson, 4745 S Atlantic Ave, mentioned that people used to attend to 231 
discuss items they were not happy with, and the current meeting time is good; Mayor Paritsky 232 
closed public participation. Attorney Brackins reiterated that some items legally require a morning 233 
or evening meeting, and therefore two meetings might have to be conducted in the same month.  234 
 235 
Council consensus to bring this item back for further discussion. 236 
 237 
 14. FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL: 238 
 239 

A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 – Commended everyone on being productive, and 240 
wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 241 

 242 
 B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 – Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and 243 
happy, healthy, and prosperous 2024.  244 
 245 

C. Councilmember White, Seat #3 – Discussed his first TPO meeting. He also 246 
discussed some additional funding and grants that are available and stated that he would pass the 247 
information on to the Town Manager. Councilmember White also commended Public Works for 248 
their good work. He then discussed the Christmas parade and wished everyone a Merry Christmas 249 
and Happy Holidays. 250 

 251 
D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 – Discussed the Ponce Inlet residents and the 252 

Christmas parade. He reminded the Councilmembers that the First-Step Shelter gala banquet is in 253 
February. The First-Step Shelter served over 5,000 meals and got 12 people into housing in the 254 
last month. 255 
 256 
 E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 – From the Florida League of Cities, the Sovereign 257 
Immunity Bill was reviewed as well as a permitting bill that involves condensing the timeline for 258 
people obtaining their permits. Mayor Paritsky mentioned that the League is beginning to 259 
accumulate data necessary to ascertain the cost to municipalities if the bills are passed, and what 260 
kind of negative impact it would have on home rule powers. She gave an update on the Legislative 261 
committee she sits on, which focuses on stormwater, and on PACE. She discussed the recent 262 
meeting between the Town Manager, Public Safety Director, and herself with State Legislator 263 
Senator Brodeur’s Senior Legislative Aide, Zack Broderson. Mayor Paritsky extended her 264 
appreciation to the Town Manager, Public Safety Director, and Council for their professionalism 265 
and high level of service for residents. She also congratulated employee of the year, Kim Bressett. 266 
Mayor Paritsky then wished everyone a very happy and healthy holiday season. 267 
  268 
15. FROM THE TOWN MANAGER – Mr. Disher reported that Ponce Inlet was not awarded 269 
the SAFER grant to help fund new Fire Department personnel, however the Town did receive 270 
some additional hurricane reimbursement funding from FEMA. He reminded everyone of the 271 
Town facilities holiday hours and wished everyone Happy Holidays. 272 



 

 
 
Town Council  December 18, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 7 

 273 
16. FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY – Attorney Brackins stated he had nothing further to 274 
report. 275 
 276 
17. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (on items 14 – 16 only) – Mayor Paritsky opened public 277 
participation. Mayor Paritsky closed public comment. 278 
 279 
18. ADJOURNMENT – With no further business, Mayor Paritsky adjourned the meeting at 280 
8:01 p.m. 281 
 282 
Respectfully submitted by: 283 
 284 
Draft         285 
Kim Cherbano, CMC / Town Clerk 286 
Prepared by: Stephanie Gjessing, Administrative Assistant 287 



Report to Town Council 

Topic: Appointment to the Code Enforcement Board. 

Summary: See attached staff report and supporting documents. 

Suggested motion:  As determined by Council. 

Requested by:   Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 1/18/2024 

Agenda Item:   7-A 



Item 7-A

Staff Report to Town Manager 

MEMORANDUM 
Town of Ponce Inlet / Office of the Town Clerk 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, Town Manager 
From: Debbie Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk   
Through: Kim Cherbano, Town Clerk 
Date: December 19, 2023 
Subject: Appointment to the Code Enforcement Board 

MEETING DATE:  January 18, 2024 

Ms. Karen Rij has applied for appointment to the vacant Alternate Seat #2 for the Code 
Enforcement Board; she has received the board member training materials and attended the last 
two Code Enforcement Board meetings. Her residency and voter status has been confirmed and 
she has met Council’s requirements of eligibility for board appointment. 

The applicant is compliant with the standards established by Resolution 2013-02. 

Suggested motion: 

• At Council’s discretion.

Attachment(s): 
1. Karen Rij Application to the Code Enforcement Board

/ds 



Town of Ponce Inlet 
4300 South Atlantic Avenue 

Ponce Inlet, FL 32127 
(386) 236-2180

Application for appointment to the 

CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARD 
Please note that all information provided becomes a public record upon receipt. Each member of the Board shall be a qualified elector of the Town of Ponce Inlet and preference for appointment will be given to full-time residents per Section 2-91(g) of the Town's Code of Ordinances. Meetings are held at 9:30 am on the fourth Monday of each month in the Council Chambers at 4300 S. Atlantic Ave, Ponce Inlet, FL.

All actions and duties o • he c�

1

• 
�

forcement Board shall be governed by Chapter 162, Florida Statutes.

Name: (J::/, 

Address: 
Daytime Telephone: - Cell: _ _ ______ _____,�------
E-mail address:-/LJ u+L) ,£,u//2 c<iiJ Ao-l-fi, �I.am
Residency: � Full-time D Part-time (If part time, please indicate the number of months you are usually in Ponce Inlet each year): ______ _ 
Indicate if you have experience and/rducation in the following fields:

D Architecture Cl Real Estate D Business Ownership/Management 
D Engineering General Contracting/Construction 

If yes, please explain�
-=-"""-----=:....u......::....;---=--..;.....:...:-----==""'-'<-----;.<--"--=�'---'-/.,......,,,.,._,,.,.......'--,'->,,__,.�,:==-.......L.....aL...o..=:=----=--r---
/ �. 

Do you have aining and/or experience in Parliamen pr 

Application for Board Appointment- Code Eriforcement Board 
Revised 7/20/18 

Sunshine Law and Quasi-Judicial 
' 

Pagel o/2 

Item 7-A





 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Appointments to the Planning Board. 
 
Summary: Please see the attached staff report. 

  
Suggested motion: At Council’s discretion. 

 
Requested by:   Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 
 

 Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 1/18/2024 

Agenda Item:   7-B 



Item 7-B

Staff Report to Town Manager 

MEMORANDUM 
Town of Ponce Inlet / Office of the Town Clerk 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, Town Manager 
From: Debbie Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk  
Through: Kim Cherbano, Town Clerk 
Date: January 2, 2024 
Subject: Appointments to the Planning Board 

MEETING DATE:  January 18, 2024 

Mr. Michael B. Revak and Mr. S. Joseph Young have applied for appointment to the vacant 
Alternate Seats #1 and #2 for the Planning Board; they have received the board member training 
materials and attended a previous Planning Board meeting.  

Each applicant’s residency and voter status has been confirmed and they have met Council’s 
requirements of eligibility for board appointment. 

Suggested motion: 

• At Council’s discretion.

Attachment(s): 
1. Michael B. Revak’s Application to the Planning Board
2. S. Joseph Young’s Application to the Planning Board

/ds 



Town of Ponce Inlet 

4300 South Atlantic Avenue 

Ponce Inlet, FL 32127 

(386) 236-2180

Application for Appointment to the 

PL��NING BOARD 
Please note that all information provided becomes a public record upon receipt. 

meirJJblll!I' of the Board shall be a qualified elector of the Town of Ponce Inlet and preference for appointment 
will to full-time residents per Section 2-9l(g) of the Town's Code of Ordinances. Board meetings are held 
on the fourth Tuesday of each month in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic A venue in Ponce Inlet. 

Name: ,lit IIAt 

Address: AWL IJO(-TH 

Daytime 'f elephone: 

E-mail address: IA I a. t,6JA ;C � CJcfT twi:::- . Co M

Residency: �-time D Part-time 
(If part-time, please indicate the number of months you are usually in Ponce Inlet each year): _______ 

The duties of Uw Pl3lliling Boat.cl a.re listed in Sections 6.22 ood :6.6-of the Town\� Laiid Vst: and De,elopment 
Code. 

h«licate i::: exp,ri.n<£ ::::::::
, � ::n,truction

0 Urhl.lll n�sign O Gmwih Management O Landscape Architecture 
D Architecture O Land Use Law D Civil Engineering 
D Development Regulations Gfother closely related field 

lf yes, please explain: __ f'_1_M_�_L _ _c_f_0_6_1 .-_,,_o_w ____ '--'� .......... • J;_//1 ____ �_1'11_5_· _&'_·_Al.-'t,_,R�G_'/_111_,4_-S __ A�S __ V:_'f�--

Do you have any training and/or experience in Parliamentary Procedure, Sunshine Law, and Quasi-Judicial 
proceedings? NO If so, please describe: ________________ _

Applh,tion for Board Appoitttmi!nt -Planning Boatd Pagel of2 
Revised 7 /20/18 

Item 7-B





Town of Ponce Inlet 
4300 South Atlantic Avenue 

Ponce Inlet, FL 32127 
(386) 236-2180

Application for Appointment to the 

PLANNING BOARD 
Please note that all information provided becomes a public record upon receipt. 

Each member of the Board shall be a qualified elector of the Town of Ponce Inlet and preference for appointmentwill be given to full-time residents per Section 2-91 (g) of the Town's Code of Ordinances. Board meetings are heldon the fourth Tuesday of each month in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic Avenue in Ponce Inlet.
Name:
Address:
Daytime Telephone: Cell: ______________ 
E-mail address: {jt:J>ep 6

>
1ev.:,f e jM,;,,/, ce;,(1-'1.

Residency: lB'Full-time D Part-time (If part-time, please indicate the number of months you are usually in Ponce Inlet each year): _____ __ 
The duties of the Planning Board are listed in Sections 6.2.2 and 6.6 of the Town's Land Use and DevelopmentCode. 
Indicate if you have experience and/or education in the following fields:

D Planning urLand Development �nstruction 
D Urban Design D Growth Management
D Architecture D Land Use Law
Gtnevelopment Regulations

D Landscape Architecture
D Civil Engineering 
C9-t>ther closely related field

1 If yes, please explain: t;; Cvr✓t.A.+(
7 

4111 duu kl'l1-j /or1.-/ �vl-�1�_ �C fo11c.c
//) /f;-l y�)"ttv/ S-,c.{-h/, _;r:-- 4/5 D /A.)o✓LJ 1.,,_ Cc211s:·fr._,c..h£JJ/\. b,1r/l(l±<I
dvt-/4,�M/A I-- t / £� j,L.a! r _( I/I )./ £, ri ,r / ,-- v-a, 1 S 

I 
T II) b t1 ;_o

Ice.al S�h- lk k..l�ra I ¢0vh- 1y, �Cc>JI\.-OMIL Ll,A,£,la pfrU&./- 11J
I , I 

r 
Do you have any training and/or experience in Parliamentary Procedure, Sunshine Law, and Quasi-Judicial
proceedings? l/4 >, Ifso, please describe: --C:-.,.,. a�e-hhtJ.-. to lo bb

y
,7,

r .Fe:f 6)� ,boc..ctls � fv//t-/1,-1--(
T 

srl: tU! ffeA. R,/1�{ _/.-,i f-c. I-

Application for Board Appointment - Planning Board Page 1 o/2 
Revised 7/20/18

Item 7-B





Report to Town Council 

Topic: FDP 37-2023; Final Development Plan 
Marine Science Center Learning Center Expansion 
100 Lighthouse Drive 

Summary: 

The applicant, representing Volusia County, lessee, as authorized by 
the State of Florida, owner, requests approval final site plan for the 
expansion of the Marine Science Center Learning Center, to include 
expansion of the current education building, addition of a turtle quarantine 
deck and expansion of the existing parking lot to include an additional 22 
parking spaces. 

Suggested motion: 

Recommendation of approval of the proposed MSC – Learning 
Center Expansion Final Development Plan. 

Requested by:   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 1/18/2024 

Agenda Item:   9-A 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

From: Patty Rippey, AICP, Senior Planner 

Through: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 

Date: January 8, 2024 

Subject: FDP 37-2023, Final Development Plan – Marine Science Center Learning Center 
Expansion 

LOCATION: 100 Lighthouse Drive 
APPLICANT: John Dillard, P.E., Zev Cohen & Associates, Inc. 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval, based on the findings listed in this memorandum. 

MEETING DATE: January 18, 2024 

INTRODUCTION 1 
The applicant, representing Volusia County, lessee, as authorized by the State of Florida, owner, 2 
requests approval of the final site plan for the expansion of the Marine Science Center Learning 3 
Center, to include a 1,658 square feet classroom addition, a 1,064 square feet turtle quarantine 4 
deck addition, expansion of the existing parking lot to include an additional 22 parking spaces, and 5 
associated site improvements.  6 

7 
AUTHORITY AND PROCESS 8 
The application was first submitted by the applicant on May 23, 2023. The Development Review 9 
Team (DRT) reviewed the submittal and provided a series of comments to address technical 10 
requirements of the Land Use and Development Code (LUDC). The final revised plan was 11 
submitted by the applicant on October 6, 2023, with all comments having been addressed. The 12 
landscape plan was reviewed by the Cultural Services Board on December 4, 2023, pursuant to 13 
LUDC Section 4.10.5. The final development plan was reviewed and recommended for approval 14 
by the Planning Board on December 19, 2023, in accordance with LUDC Section 6.6.6.  15 

16 

Item 9-A



Final Development Plan – MSC Learning Center Expansion 
Case No. FDP 37-2023 Page 2 

PROPERTY OVERVIEW 17 
CURRENT DEVELOPMENT 18 
The subject area is located west of S. Atlantic Avenue at 100 Lighthouse Drive (see Attachment 19 
1). The entire Marine Science Center (MSC) property as bounded by Atlantic Avenue to the east, 20 
Lighthouse Drive to the south, Peninsula Drive to the west, and the lighthouse preservation 21 
association property to the north, is approximately 5.9 acres. However, only the Learning Center 22 
expansion, turtle quarantine deck, parking lot expansion and associated site improvements will be 23 
discussed for purpose of this report.  24 

25 
The subject property is zoned P/I (Public/Institutional) and has a corresponding future land use 26 
map designation of Public/Institutional that is consistent with the zoning district. The P/I zoning 27 
district permits activity of federal, state, and local governments as well as quasi-public and private 28 
activities or facilities that will serve the public interest in an educational, recreational, or scientific 29 
context. The property is also located in the Lighthouse Overlay District (LOD) and is subject to 30 
supplementary regulations for properties within 750 feet from the historic lighthouse.  31 

32 
The subject site area is currently developed with an existing learning center, turtle rehabilitation 33 
sanctuary, turtle commissary, bird rehabilitation sanctuary, raptor exhibit, and natural vegetation. 34 
A limited area of less than half of an acre is proposed to be cleared to accommodate the proposed 35 
Learning Center building expansion. 36 

37 
ADJACENT LAND USES 38 
The properties to the north and east are currently undeveloped park preserve. These properties are 39 
zoned P/I with a consistent future land use (FLU) designation of Public Institutional. The property 40 
to the west of the Marine Science is also zoned P/I with a consistent future land use designation of 41 
Public Institutional and is the site of the historic lighthouse. The properties to the south are either 42 
zoned B-2 with a consistent FLU designation of Riverfront Commercial or are zoned R-3 with a 43 
consistent FLU designation of Medium Density Single Family Residential. (See Table 1 and 44 
Figure 1) 45 

46 
Table 1 47 

Direction Zoning Future Land Use Designation Current Use 
North P/I Public / Institutional Preserve 
East P/I Public / Institutional Public Park 
South B-2 Riverfront Commercial Commercial 
South R-3 Medium Density Single Family Residential Single Family Residential 
West P/I Public / Institutional Lighthouse 

48 



Final Development Plan – MSC Learning Center Expansion 
Case No. FDP 37-2023 Page 3 

Figure 1 - Zoning Map 49 

50 
51 
52 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 53 
SITE LAYOUT & PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS 54 
The site plan application proposes the expansion of the main building by adding a 1,658 SF 55 
dedicated education room to replace the 550 SF classroom now serving multiple purposes. 56 
Justification for the new Learning Center Expansion was provided by Chad Macfie, Marine 57 
Science Center Director, “The project will create a dividable classroom that right-sizes our 58 
opportunities to provide live animal presentations and learning opportunities on one side and 59 
visiting student programs on the other. The project will also renovate interior portions of the 60 
center to improve visitor flow, staff, and volunteer spaces. The project will allow visitors to enjoy 61 
and learn without an important part of our educational programming being closed during visiting 62 
school group field trips.” 63 

64 
The expansion will also add a 1,064 SF turtle quarantine deck. The new quarantine deck will 65 
provide an isolated area for sick turtles to prevent disease or infections from spreading to other 66 
turtles. Other expanded elements include a new meandering sidewalk from the parking lot to the 67 
main building entrance which will also be used for native habitat education. The parking lot 68 
expansion will include a sidewalk extension to Lighthouse Drive to improve the flow of foot traffic 69 
for pedestrian safety, taking them out of the way of cars and onto designated sidewalks. A shell 70 
parking area will be added for employees and to provide an outdoor area for students to wash off 71 
equipment after beach and river educational programs. New walkway decks will be constructed 72 
around the new structures, linking them to the existing structures. (ee Attachment 4) 73 



Final Development Plan – MSC Learning Center Expansion 
Case No. FDP 37-2023 Page 4 

REQUIRED PARKING 74 
The site currently provides an adequate number of parking spaces in the main parking lot and along 75 
Lighthouse Drive1. The site plan proposes to add 2,722 square feet of classroom and turtle 76 
rehabilitation space and 22 new parking spaces, increasing the existing 17 spaces in the paved lot 77 
to 39 spaces. There will be a total of 60 spaces available for the Marine Science Center between 78 
the paved parking lot spaces and 22 additional spaces on the south side of Lighthouse Drive. The 79 
access driveway to the project area will remain in its existing location. All proposed parking spaces 80 
are designed to comply with the minimum width and length pursuant to the LUDC2.  81 

82 
VEGETATION 83 
The Marine Science Center property currently provides a significant tree canopy and is considered 84 
a heavily wooded lot (see Figure 2). As defined in the LUDC3, a heavily wooded lot is a parcel 85 
with greater than 90 percent tree canopy coverage. Pursuant to the LUDC4, trees removed from 86 
the building footprint and driveway areas of heavily wooded lots are not required to be replaced. 87 

88 
The proposed plan (see Attachment 2) calls for the removal of 18 Live Oak trees, 3 Bay trees and 89 
2 Cedar trees. All the trees are specimen trees except for one Live Oak that is 3” DBH. Nineteen 90 
of the trees proposed to be removed are located within the building or parking lot footprint. Four 91 
trees are proposed for removal from the stormwater retention area (see Figure 3). 92 

93 
All existing trees and vegetation outside of the project area will be preserved. Since trees are being 94 
preserved on site, outside of the designated protection zone, the mitigation ratio is reduced to 1:1 95 
for any trees removed that are not within the building footprint or access driveway5.  96 

97 
Figure 2        Figure 3 98 

99100

1 LUDC 4.7.8 – Minimum number of off-street parking spaces 
2 LUDC 4.7.7 – Dimensional requirements for off-street parking areas 
3 LUDC 9.4 - Definitions 
4 LUDC 4.10.4.E.1.b – Tree replacement mitigation 
5 LUDC Sec. 4.10.4.E.2 

Proposed 
removal of 4 
specimen trees 
from stormwater 
retention area 



Final Development Plan – MSC Learning Center Expansion 
Case No. FDP 37-2023 Page 5 
 

      
 

The landscape plan (Page LA-1) (Attachment 2) was submitted to the Cultural Services Board 101 
(CSB) on December 4, 2023, for review and recommendation. 102 

The proposed landscaping consists of 291 Saw Palmetto shrubs encompassing the perimeter of the 103 
expanded parking lot and building site. A total of 56 shade trees (Wax Myrtle, Live Oak, Southern 104 
Magnolia), 8 Sabal Palmetto palm trees, 414 shrubs (Beautyberry, Simpson Stopper, Wild Coffee, 105 
Coontie), and 50 Blanket Flower plants are planned for the parking lot islands, screening between 106 
the stormwater area and the boat trailer parking lot on S. Peninsula, and adjacent to the Learning 107 
Center expansion. Bahia grass will be planted in the stormwater retention area. All proposed plants 108 
and trees are native, drought tolerant, and will be low maintenance once established. 109 

The landscape requirements in the code6 are intended to provide minimum standards for aesthetics 110 
and value, public safety, environmental quality, community character, natural habitat, coastal 111 
hazards, efficiency, water conservation, buffering, and cultivation. The CSB voted unanimously 112 
to recommend approval of the proposed landscape plan. Staff believes the proposed landscaping 113 
satisfies code requirements in all respects.  114 
 115 
GOPHER TORTOISES 116 
The environmental assessment submitted with the application reports that no gopher tortoises were 117 
observed during the inspection by gopher tortoise agents authorized through the Florida Fish and 118 
Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) within the project area and surrounding 25-foot radius. 119 
If construction has occurred within 90 days, a secondary gopher tortoise inspection will be 120 
conducted. If any tortoises or active burrows are then found, the applicant must obtain a gopher 121 
tortoise relocation permit from FWC, pursuant to the Town’s gopher tortoise protection 122 
regulations7. No site work may take place until first authorized by FWC. Any tortoise burrows 123 
would need to be protected during construction with a temporary barrier set up in a 25-foot radius 124 
around each burrow.  125 
 126 
DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES 127 
The education building and the turtle quarantine area will be connected to water and sanitary sewer 128 
services that currently serve the main facility structure. The proposed structure will not create any 129 
additional demand on these utilities. The City of Port Orange has determined that the proposed 130 
connections to the water and sanitary sewer lines comply with applicable utility regulations. There 131 
is a planned utility line improvement project to address water pressure and an aged pumpstation 132 
that is scheduled for replacement in 2024. However, the project would be necessary without the 133 
proposed improvements related to this request.  134 
 135 
ARCHITECTURAL ELEVATIONS 136 
The Learning Center expansion and turtle quarantine deck additions have been designed to comply 137 
with the Town’s architectural requirements of the LOD8. The total height of the expanded 138 
structures will be 27 feet measured from the finished grade to the peak of the roof. The existing 139 
MSC main building is 35 feet in height. 140 
 141 

 
6 LUDC 4.10.1 – Purpose and Intent 
7 LUDC Sec. 4.14, Ord. 2019-03, April 18, 2019 
8 LUDC Sec. 2.1.6.C 



Final Development Plan – MSC Learning Center Expansion 
Case No. FDP 37-2023 Page 6 

The code requires all primary exterior building materials to be durable, economically maintained, 142 
and of high quality that will retain their appearance over time. In addition, in the Lighthouse 143 
Overlay District, these materials must also be consistent with the historical character of the area. 144 
The architectural style design of both structures will match the appearance of Marine Science 145 
Center main building. The structures will feature a standing seam metal roof, painted board-and-146 
batten siding styles plus trim. The proposed colors are tan and taupe to blend into with the 147 
surrounding natural vegetation. There will be green vinyl coated chain link fencing securing the 148 
turtle quarantine area that will not be visible from the road or the front of the main building. 149 
(Attachment 5).  150 

151 
LOD REVIEW CRITERIA 152 
Pursuant to LUDC Section 2.16.E.1, applications for development permits on the LOD shall be 153 
reviewed for compliance with the following five criteria. The criteria and staff’s response are 154 
provided below: 155 

156 
(a) The proposed development is consistent with the purpose and intent of the LOD.157 

Staff response: The purpose of the LOD is, “…to ensure that all significant vistas that158 
include the lighthouse or surrounding historic grounds are preserved.” Toward that end,159 
the LOD limits the size of non-residential buildings and requires that they be oriented to160 
not block views of the Lighthouse. The proposed 1,658 square feet, one-story Learning161 
Center expansion and 1,064 square feet turtle quarantine addition meet these requirements.162 

163 
(b) The proposed development is consistent with Ponce Inlet’s Comprehensive Plan.164 

Staff response: The proposed Development Plan is consistent with the Ponce Inlet165 
comprehensive plan. The proposed development does not exceed the 35% maximum lot166 
coverage limits for the Public/Institutional future land use category and will be buffered167 
from adjacent uses with landscaping and screening. The proposed development is168 
consistent with the purpose of this future land use category, which includes “…land used169 
for any lawful governmental activity or facility or federal, state, and local governments,170 
which are particularly and peculiarly related to serving the public welfare. Additionally, it171 
includes areas used for quasi-public and private activities or facilities that will serve the172 
public interest in an educational, recreational, or scientific context. Adequate infrastructure173 
capacity exists to support the development as determined by the Town’s level-of-service174 
standards. The proposed project is consistent with all relevant Comprehensive Plan175 
elements.176 

177 
(c) The site is physically suitable for the project design and its construction phase.178 

Staff response: The site characteristics are physically suitable for the project, including179 
grading, drainage, utilities, and building site preparation.180 

181 
(d) The proposed development minimizes and reduces to the greatest extent possible and182 

where applicable, visual impacts and obstructions to the lighthouse from both the183 
Halifax River and the land area within the LOD boundary.184 
Staff response: Both the building expansion and walkway/deck addition size, height,185 
placement, and orientation will minimize visual impacts to the Lighthouse.186 

187 



Final Development Plan – MSC Learning Center Expansion 
Case No. FDP 37-2023 Page 7 

(e) The architectural style and building scale of any proposed development reflect the188 
historic setting and unique character of this geographic area.189 
Staff response: The architectural style of the structures is intended to be compatible with190 
the other buildings in the Marine Science Center complex. These buildings use a variety of191 
historic materials, styles, and colors to blend into the heavily wooded setting of the192 
property.193 

194 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW CRITERIA 195 
In addition to the above criteria specific to the LOD, six general criteria appliable to all 196 
development plans must be considered.9 These criteria are discussed below. 197 

198 
a. Characteristics of the site and surrounding area, including important natural and199 

manmade features, the size and accessibility of the site, and surrounding land uses.200 
201 

Staff’s Response: The proposed Learning Center expansion, parking lot expansion, and turtle202 
quarantine deck addition will have no negative impact on the characteristics of the site, the203 
surrounding area, or any adjacent land uses. The proposed building is designed to be204 
consistent with the existing structures that are part of the MSC development. The existing205 
vegetation provides significant screening to the project area such that it will not be visible to206 
any adjacent property or land uses. This criterion is met.207 

208 
b. Whether the concurrency requirements of article 5 of this code could be met if the209 

development were built.210 
211 

Staff’s Response: The proposed Learning Center expansion, parking lot expansion, and turtle212 
quarantine deck addition will not create any additional traffic or utility concurrency impacts.213 
The new Learning Center will provide larger indoor classroom space for students and the214 
quarantine deck will provide an isolated area for sick turtles. According to the applicant, no215 
additional increase in programs, students, or staff has been proposed. The proposed216 
expansion and addition will be able to connect to the existing utility lines currently utilized217 
by the main MSC facility.218 

219 
The application included technical memorandum confirming the average annual number of220 
daily trips. Based on the proposed learning center space and quarantine deck area, the221 
development will generate 9.37 average annual daily trips10 . The additional 9.37 daily trips222 
do not affect the Town’s level-of-service standards.223 
This criterion is met.224 

225 
c. The nature of the proposed development, including land use types and densities; the226 

placement of proposed buildings and other improvements on the site; the location, type,227 
and method of maintenance of open space and public use areas; the preservation of228 
natural features; proposed parking areas; internal traffic circulation system; the229 
approximate total ground coverage of paved areas and structures; and types of water230 
sewage treatment systems.231 

232 
Staff’s Response: The proposed Learning Center expansion, parking lot expansion, and turtle233 
quarantine deck addition are designed to comply with all development regulations and234 

9 Section 6.6.6.B.5.b 
10 Institute of Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition 



Final Development Plan – MSC Learning Center Expansion 
Case No. FDP 37-2023 Page 8 

requirements for improvements as identified within the LUDC. This includes allowable use 235 
type, density, location, parking and circulation, and preservation of natural features and open 236 
spaces. This criterion is met.  237 

238 
d. Consistency of the proposed development with the comprehensive plan.239 

240 
Staff’s Response: See response to LOD criterion (b) above.241 

242 
e. Conformity of the proposed development with this code and other applicable243 

regulations.244 
245 

Staff’s Response: The proposed plan complies with the requirements of the LUDC, as246 
described in this report.247 

248 
f. Concerns of surrounding landowners and other affected persons, presented as249 

competent substantial evidence regarding one or more of the criteria of this subsection.250 
251 

Staff’s Response: On December 29, 2023, letters were sent by certified mail to owners of252 
property abutting the subject property to notify them of the Town Council Hearing for the253 
site plan. A public hearing notice was also posted on the subject property on January 2, 2024.254 
Notice of the Town Council meeting has been published in the News-Journal. These efforts255 
were made to ensure that the public and nearby property owners are aware of the application256 
and for them to have an opportunity to voice their concerns and desires. At the time of this257 
writing, no comments from the public have been received.258 

259 
Planning Board Member, Michael Kaszuba, was unable to attend the Planning Board meeting260 
on December 19, 2023 and provided comments by email to the Deputy Town Clerk the day261 
of the meeting (see Attachment 6).262 

263 
REVIEW COMMENTS 264 
The plans have been revised to address the technical review comments of the DRT. The plans are 265 
now complete, with no comments remaining.  266 

267 
RECOMMENDATION 268 
Based on the findings of this memorandum, along with the recommendations from the Cultural 269 
Services Board and Planning Board, Staff recommends that the Town Council approve the 270 
proposed site plan package for the Marine Science Center Learning Center Expansion Project. 271 

January 8, 2024 
Patty Rippey, Senior Planner Date 

Attachments: 
1. Location map
2. Landscaping Site Plan
3. Existing Site Vegetation
4. Site Layout
5. Architectural Elevations
6. Planning Board Member Comments



ATTACHMENT 1 – Location Map 

Case No.: FDP 37-2023 Summary of Request: To approve proposed 
expansion of the Learning Center, parking lot 
and addition of a turtle quarantine deck.  Applicant: John Dillard, 

Property Address/Location:  100 Lighthouse Drive 

LOCATION MAP 
T O W N  O F  P O N C E  I N L E T



ATTACHMENT 2 – Landscaping Site Plan



ATTACHMENT 2 – Landscaping Site Plan

Landscape Plan Detail 
at Learning Center 

Expansion and Turtle 
Quarantine Deck 



ATTACHMENT 2 – Landscaping Site Plan

Landscape Plan Detail  
at Expanded Parking Lot 

Landscape Plan Detail  
at Stormwater Retention 

Area/Boat Trailer Parking 



ATTACHMENT 3 – Existing Vegetation 



ATTACHMENT 4 Site Layout



ATTACHMENT 5 Architectural Elevations



ATTACHMENT 6 Planning Board Member Comments

From: Mike Kaszuba <michaeljkaszuba@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, December 19, 2023 10:28 AM 
To: Debbie Stewart <dstewart@ponce-inlet.org> 
Cc: Mike Disher <mdisher@ponce-inlet.org>; Lois Paritsky <lparitsky@ponce-inlet.org> 
Subject: Marine Science Center expansion 

[EXTERNAL: This email was sent from outside of ponce-inlet.org, confirm this is a trusted sender before 
opening any links or attachments] 

Debbie -- 
I will not be at today's planning board meeting (I have COVID), but wanted to make a comment 
on the Marine Science Center expansion proposal. 

Please make sure this gets to Mr. Cannon and others -- thanks. 

My comment: 

Back when this expansion was first proposed, and the Marine Science Center held an open house 
at the PI Community Center, I remember a discussion about having the science center rethink 
how it does things.   

Specifically, the idea would be to have the science center focus more on research -- which 
appears to be more of its original mission -- and have the Marine Discovery Center in 
nearby New Smyrna Beach focus more on boat tours, summer camps etc. 

For the Town of Ponce Inlet, such a proposal would help ease the already-worsening traffic 
congestion issues surrounding the lighthouse.  Plus, the New Smyrna facility already has much 
more space for parking. 

I realize the two facilities are not formally linked, but both seem to offer overlapping programs -- 
especially when it comes to summer camps, etc.  In fact, a comparison of the two facilities 
indicates that they are in some ways competing with each other. 

It seems to me there are some cost efficient ways at looking at all of this. 

But I do not see anything in this proposal that indicates whether that was ever contemplated. 

Thanks. 

Mike Kaszuba 
PI planning board member 

Item 9-A

mailto:michaeljkaszuba@gmail.com
mailto:dstewart@ponce-inlet.org
mailto:mdisher@ponce-inlet.org
mailto:lparitsky@ponce-inlet.org


Item 9-A





I NTER-OFFI CE MEMORAN DUM

*
Volusilr_C_ounty

FtOR IDA

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT: Y

December 13,2017

John Angiutti, PW Director

Jon Cheney, P.E., VC Traffic Engineer

south Atlantic Avenue Malntenance & Federat Functional classification

Ponce lnlet requested that Volusia County consider maintaining South Atlantic Avenue from Beach Street
south to it terminus. This was based upon South Attantic Avenue being a Federal Functlonat Classified A{inor
Cotlector-Urban roadway, instead of a locat road.

According to the River to Sea Transportation Plannlng Organization (R2C TpO) and the Ftorida DOT Data &
Analysis Office, the section of South Attantic south of Beactr Street is a locat road. Refer to Figure 1 and
attached email from Aarti Sharma (RZC TPO) dated December 6,2017.

rr1t.... a ..r.t

\,

3
. l. .rfl'- I

Mlnor Collector (Fed Atdl - Urban

t:

E

ffi
I

,*l r

Item 9-A



This is consistent with county Road & Bridge Division records. Refer to Figure 2.

The Federal Functionat Classification of atl roads are reviewed every 10 years as part of the Census and is
managed by the Florida DOT through the R2C TPO. Any changes can be made by a local government. The
merits of the requested changed are evatuated to determine whether it meets the classification criteria. Upon
comptetion, the R2C TPO Board approves the new Federat Functional Classification & new Urban Boundary's.

ln addition, our records indicate that this portion of South Attantic Avenue was transferred to the Town
of Ponce lntet on September 25, 1987 since it was ctassified as a local street. (Refer to letter from Thomas
McClelland to Robert Burns dated September 25, 1987.1

There used to be guidance within the Florida Statutes that a tocal jurisdiction should maintain certain
Federat Functionat Ctassified roads (i.e., interstate, arteriat, coltector, locat). However; Ftorida Statute
335.0415 Public Rmd Jurisdiction and Transfer Process now requires any change of the iurisdiction of a road

subsequent to Juty 1, 1995 may be onty by mutua[ agreement of the affected governmental entities. And "the
jurisdiction of public roads and the responsibitity for operation and maintenance within the right'of'way of any

ioad within the state, county, and municipal road system shalt be that which existed on June 10, 1995."
(Refer to attached Ftorida Statute 335.0415.)

Therefore, there is no competting reason at this time to maintain this city tocal street. ln fact, the
County has been transferring to various city's minor cotlectors that are no longer on the County's Thorotghfare

2 - Road

. .t{

Ai.+tt(' 
,-J9 

!
]f,1S
tnuCi
8E C(

% oo*t'
$)
Ya

ATJ{Tl:
CaCAr

a,n . .ti1i .. .ro.l1l
.:r i lt{f 

r:1 
oqr r 

r. t'(,rtr' 
'

. ', 'i-+i' 
tF{

(1.._'

tJtlJ:l{: 
i 

o ,

i$ril''L''

--,N1it-^'

,tsI\ ,..

'/-
4

vL.

cl;[ $hr
\'l.iii tlA{

ld€nuty 7

Flerd \a!0
0tDg66

SATLANTICAV

Nul

Nul

CARIBBEAN WAY

EEACH ST

IN CITY UMITS

Lnk ,+

, o$'

s*.

GrBase :-
l{rmc:

AIoI:
AI.t2:

Ffilsrt.t
Tosrccl:

Mlhl

tr*.i
iaai
.EOr
4Jt

AAOT

Coocuocncy:

T.lnrPhnlD:

EvrcRurc:

FHW'U

Comtdncd:

Nul

NO

&99999

NO

NO

NO

xnct
!tor
nlgI

Dr. L!*rg36,r

CofltoiO:

/ Red Mahbnxrc€

SAILAI{TICA/:

Cb.tlficltbn: LOCAL

l'lAii A/Ur N<J{l H



Ptan during city annexation (e.g. lSB's with NSB, Edgewater and Oak Hitt) or city incorporation (e.g. Dettona &
DeBary).

Finally, there has been discussion of adding additionat parking atong Lighthouse Drive to support the
A{arine Science Center expansion. The County Legal Department provided a memorandum dated Aprit 10, 2017
(refer to attachment) that briefty exptains the acquisition history of Lighthouse Point park and the ownership of
the Lighthouse Point Park Roads.



ciunty of \rrr[
Eloric{a C$i'

I DEPART$EilT OF PUBUC VYCEXS
136 N. Florida Ay.nuG
oclmd, Floridr &17?0

fcbphooc ao+rrib.27o

I'SI4

i

Septe.:Lcr J5, i 9E?

l,!:. iceert 3ur::s
T'oxn C !e ri.
Torn Ct F--r:-.ce InleC
tl680 Scuih ieninsuta Drive
Po-ce tniet, Florida 32019

RE: Atlsntic Avenue, South of Beach Street

Dear llr. Burns :

Thig is to advise you that the southerly exteneion of
Atlantle Avenue, betueen Beach Street and tlre entrancb to
Lighttrouee Point state Park, is the reslrcnalbllity of the
Torn ol Ponce fnlet. It is not functionally claeeLfied as a
County collector roaduay and therefore is a local etreet and
not on the Functtonal Classified Roadway systen for County
naintenance.

If you havc eny furtbcr guestions, pleaae do not heeltate to
contact ne.

SLncerely,

i

,fu
Thoocr !t. tlcClelland
Director ol Pubtie lforks

Tt{}l:PllScln 21H08
Pn-TE-87-3ll

cc: Thonal C. Rellyr County trlanager
Prlnh T. Bruno, Jr,, Chairman, County Council
?. llalcola Snith, Jt.t Traffic Enginiertleorge Flact, noiA and gridge suEi-intenaent

oqratv oq.ircl' UEIBEE
OD '..*Er 

. x t.'r. !,? lg. X rr,t, Ab f - El,5l rtF'f,:tr Sato't'wa J?J.! r o.fia'oota rc eEotco.oilicr,. eqr.Eorrrus. oarta rt

I

I

j

I
I



oaatarrttor

,altrxo
lta a

i
i

ilturll ,atL

aaa? .tla'

alaa

t
,

/

----.--

t r,a

,lll'I

. -.1
,.1 tt

,aarEo

atal ltal

/
I

) I

/

i
icrrc r.lllll

alal.ala
,ltttta

LIGHTHOUSE POINT PARK

Poncr Dc Lroa Port Arlhorlly
A Drprrlaroi oJ Vcbdr Coptry C*ol.ttos)

a ,lcirc lxtlttt

rrvlror a rtt? rooal

/

Dolgnod By: r. a.r.!.afj.t t tfttr|, tt\lr:, j

o
I ,aaa re,raraa, J

a

\

I
I .)

l

\,\

I
.t oaol,,

,

.t

/ i re-rro1 /
\,.

a

\
o
ooo.,'

)

ar,

/.

/

,t
^

O. I

I

I

,tcrrc trf[trr

,t

U.t lrortrorta
.tllaral|lor.

I







Report to Town Council 

Topic: Resolution 2024-01, Supporting the Florida League of Cities’ 
Legislative Action Agenda for the 2024 Legislative Session. 

Summary: 

Please see attached staff report and supporting documentation. 

Suggested motion:  To approve Resolution 2024-01 as presented. 

Requested by:   Mayor Paritsky 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager

Meeting Date: 1/18/2024 

Agenda Item:   11-A 



MEMORANDUM 
Town of Ponce Inlet 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, Town Manager 
From: Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor 
Date: January 2, 2024 
Subject: Resolution 2024-01 – Support of the Florida League of Cities’ 2024 Legislative 

Action Agenda 

Meeting Date: January 18, 2024 

The Town of Ponce Inlet is a member of the Florida League of Cities, Inc., the organization that is 
the united voice for Florida’s 411 municipal governments.  The League’s mission is to “...serve the 
needs of Florida’s cities and promote local self-government. [And to]… support local voices 
making local choices to protect and enhance Florida’s communities.1”  The League creates an 
action agenda each year, prior to the start of the Legislative Session, identifying statewide issues 
most likely to affect municipal governance that will be addressed in the upcoming session.  The 
League then concentrates its influence to shape legislation, ensuring that the efforts of the League 
and local officials are focused on promoting local self-government.   

There are five Florida League of Cities’ Legislative Policy Committees that meet for the purpose of 
identifying and prioritizing the municipal concerns.  Attachment “A” provides an explanation of 
each of the committees and the concerns each addresses for contribution to the League’s action 
agenda.  Local elected officials volunteer to sit on one of the five Committees:  

• Finance, Taxation & Personnel
• Land Use & Economic Development
• Municipal Administration
• Transportation & Intergovernmental Relations
• Utilities, Natural Resources & Public Works2

After the end of the 2023 Legislative Session, the five Legislative Policy Committees met and 
prepared proposed priorities and policy positions for the League.  The proposed agenda reflecting 
those priority and policy positions of the municipalities was adopted by the League’s full 
membership at the Legislative Conference on December 1, 2023.  The adopted 2024 Priority and 
Policy Positions are set forth at length in Attachment “B.”  

1 https://floridaleagueofcities.com/about-pages/about 
2 This is the Committee on which the undersigned is a member 

Item 11-A

https://floridaleagueofcities.com/about-pages/about


FLC 2024 Legislative Action Agenda 

2 

Specifically, the five League Priorities address: 
• Enterprise fund transfers
• Legislative ratification of statewide stormwater rule
• Mobility plans
• Public safety recruitment and retention
• Transportation infrastructure

The four League Policies address: 
• Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE)
• Property tax protection
• Short-term rentals
• Sovereign immunity

Provided with this memorandum is a proposed Resolution incorporating the Florida League of 
Cities’ Legislative Agenda.  It sets forth Town Council approval of the League’s priorities and 
policies and the authority to work with our legislators and advocate when bills are presented within 
the scope of those policies and priorities. 

Last year, as Chair of the Advocacy Committee of the Florida League of Cities, I requested each 
member of the Advocacy Committee to present a Resolution of this nature to their respective 
Council or Commission for adoption.  It is prudent when a local elected official is speaking on 
behalf of the municipality to avoid any misunderstanding of the scope of authorization.  
Additionally, the Resolution is a reflection of the municipality’s support of the League’s legislative 
platform.  As President of the Volusia Legue of Cities, I will request all the municipalities in 
Volusia County and the Volusia League of Cities to approve a resolution in support of the League’s 
agenda.   

Placing the Florida League of Cities’ 2024 Legislative Action Agenda before municipal Councils is 
an opportunity for each elected official to consider participating in a Legislative Policy Committee 
and other League events, committees and programs, all of which are designed to help strengthen 
the role of local elected officials advocating for home rule, and shaping future League platforms 
and to influence legislation. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor 

Attachments: 
A. Florida League of Cities Legislative Policy Committees
B. Adopted 2024 Priority and Policy Positions



Resolution 2024-01 
Page 3 of 3 

RESOLUTION 2024-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, 1 
VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, URGING MEMBERS OF 2 
THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE TO SUPPORT THE 2024 3 
FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES’ LEGISLATIVE 4 
PLATFORM; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 5 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS; AND 6 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 7 

8 
WHEREAS, the Florida Legislature will convene the 2024 Legislative Session on 9 

January 9, 2024; and 10 
11 

WHEREAS, the membership of the Florida League of Cities (FLC) adopted its 2024 12 
Legislative Platform during the FLC Legislative Conference on December 1, 2023; and 13 

14 
WHEREAS, the Town of Ponce Inlet supports the 2024 FLC Legislative Platform: 15 

16 
• Supporting the preservation of municipal authority to manage municipal revenue17 

sources and realize a reasonable rate of return on their proprietary assets,18 
investments, and services.19 

20 
• Supporting legislation to ratify the Department of Environmental Protection’s21 

proposed Environmental Resource Permitting Rules for Stormwater Design and22 
Operations Regulations, Ch. 62-330, F.A.C23 

24 
• Supporting legislation that defines and clarifies mobility plans in order to provide25 

a clear and concise framework for Florida cities to acquire, construct and26 
implement both traditional and alternative modes of transportation.27 

28 
• Supporting legislation and state funding to enhance the recruitment and retention29 

efforts to attract talent in public safety positions. The Florida League of Cities30 
supports legislation that eases certification barriers for sworn law enforcement31 
officers and firefighters relocating to the state of Florida.32 

33 
• Supporting legislation to make equitable essential investments to ensure that34 

transportation infrastructure can effectively serve the needs of present and future35 
residents and visitors. This includes identifying new revenue sources for36 
statewide, regional, and local transportation requirements while promoting and37 
leveraging existing funding channels.  The Florida League of Cities supports the38 
introduction of a fee for alternative fuel vehicles to ensure they fairly contribute to39 
transportation infrastructure costs. The Florida League of Cities supports the40 
inflationary indexing of the Municipal Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax. A well preserved41 
transportation network not only inspires businesses to invest in our cities but also42 
fuels job creation and economic development.43 

44 
• Supporting legislation to clarify the term “local government” under the Property45 

Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) program means a county, a municipality, a46 
dependent special district or an intergovernmental entity that has jurisdiction only47 
within the boundaries of the participating members of an interlocal agreement.48 

Item 11-A



Resolution 2024-01 
Page 3 of 3 

49 
WHEREAS, the Town of Ponce Inlet also supports the FLC policy positions relating to: 50 

51 
• Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE)52 
• Property tax protection53 
• Short-term rentals54 
• Sovereign immunity55 

56 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 57 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, AS FOLLOWS: 58 
59 

SECTION 1. Findings. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein 60 
by this reference. 61 

62 
SECTION 2.  Support for the Florida League of Cities. The Town of Ponce Inlet will 63 

work with our local legislative delegation in support of these and other issues affecting Florida’s 64 
cities, towns and villages during the upcoming 2024 Legislative Session. 65 

66 
SECTION 3. Distribution of Resolution. A copy of this resolution shall be provided to 67 

members of our local legislative delegation and the Florida League of Cities, Inc. 68 
69 

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution 70 
is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that holding shall 71 
in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 72 

73 
SECTION 5.  Conflicting Resolutions. All resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 74 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 75 
76 

SECTION 6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 77 
adoption. 78 

79 
It was moved by  and seconded by  that said 80 

Resolution be adopted.  A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as follows: 81 
82 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 83 
84 

Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 85 
86 

Councilmember White, Seat #3 87 
88 

Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 89 
90 

Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 91 
 92 
Passed this 18th day of January, 2024. 93 
 94 

Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 95 
 96 
 ________________________________ 97 
 Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor 98 



Resolution 2024-01 
Page 3 of 3 

ATTEST: 99 
 100 
____________________________ 101 
Kim Cherbano, Town Clerk 102 



ATTACHMENT “A” 

Florida League of Cities Legislative Policy Committees1 

(1) FINANCE, TAXATION & PERSONNEL

This committee addresses municipal roles in general finance and tax issues, 
Home-Rule revenues, infrastructure funding, insurance, local option 
revenues, pension issues, personnel and collective bargaining issues, 
revenue sharing, tax and budget reform, telecommunications and workers’ 
compensation.  

(2) LAND USE & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

This committee addresses policies specific to municipal concerns with 
community redevelopment, economic development, growth management 
and land use planning issues, annexation, eminent domain, tort liability and 
property rights. 

(3) MUNICIPAL ADMINISTRATION

This committee addresses municipal concerns with code enforcement, 
elections, emergency management, gaming, homeland security, public 
meetings, public property management, public records, public safety, and 
procurement, as well as charter counties and special districts. 

(4) TRANSPORTATION & INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

This committee addresses municipal concerns relating to transportation and 
highway safety, as well as aviation, affordable housing (and homelessness), 
billboards, building codes, charter schools, rights-of-way and veterans 
affairs. 

(5) UTILITIES, NATURAL RESOURCES & PUBLIC WORKS

This committee addresses policies specific to municipal concerns with 
coastal management, energy, environmental and wetlands permitting, 
hazardous and toxic wastes, recycling, solid waste collection and disposal, 
stormwater, wastewater treatment and reuse, water management, water 
quality and quantity.” 

1 https://floridaleagueofcities.com/advocacy-pages/policy-committees 

11-A Attachment A

https://floridaleagueofcities.com/advocacy-pages/policy-committees


Page 1 of 2

PRIORITIES:

Enterprise Fund Transfers
The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS the preservaon of municipal authority to manage municipal
revenue sources and realize a reasonable rate of return on their proprietary assets, investments and
services.

Legislave Raficaon of Statewide Stormwater Rule
The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS legislaon to rafy the Department of Environmental Protecon’s
proposed Environmental Resource Perming Rules for Stormwater Design and Operaon Regulaons,
Ch. 62-330, F.A.C.

Mobility Plans
The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS legislaon that denes and claries mobility plans in order to
provide a clear and concise framework for Florida cies to acquire, construct, and implement both
tradional and alternave modes of transportaon.

Public Safety Recruitment and Retenon
The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS legislaon and state funding to enhance the recruitment and
retenon eorts to aract talent in public safety posions. The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS
legislaon that eases cercaon barriers for sworn law enforcement ocers and reghters relocang
to the state of Florida.

Transportaon Infrastructure
The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS legislaon to make equitable essenal investments to ensure that
transportaon infrastructure can eecvely serve the needs of present and future residents and visitors.
This includes idenfying new revenue sources for statewide, regional and local transportaon
requirements while promong and leveraging exisng funding channels. We SUPPORT the introducon
of a fee for alternave fuel vehicles to ensure they fairly contribute to transportaon infrastructure
costs. We also SUPPORT the inaonary indexing of the Municipal Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax. A well-
preserved transportaon network not only inspires businesses to invest in our cies but also fuels job
creaon and economic development.

POLICY POSITIONS:

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE)
The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS legislaon to clarify the term “local government” under the
Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) program means a county, a municipality, a dependent special
district or an intergovernmental enty that has jurisdicon only within the boundaries of the
parcipang members of an interlocal agreement.

ATTACHMENT "B" 11-A Attachment B



Page 2 of 2

Property Tax Protecon
The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS legislaon that maintains an equitable property tax system while
preserving a municipality’s ability to fund public infrastructure, police, re, emergency services and
other essenal services. Any further erosions or exempons on the current property tax structure will
unfairly shi the tax burden to the business community, renters and others.

Short-Term Rentals
The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS legislaon that restores authority to local governments for the
regulaon of short-term rental properes as necessary for quality of life, public safety and the creaon
of fair lodging standards. The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS legislaon clarifying exisng
grandfathered municipal short-term rental ordinances can be amended without penalty. The Florida
League of Cies OPPOSES legislaon that preempts municipal authority as it relates to the regulaon of
short-term rental properes.

Sovereign Immunity
The Florida League of Cies SUPPORTS protecng Florida taxpayers by liming the waiver of sovereign
immunity on monetary damages recoverable in tort claims against government enes.



Report to Town Council 

Topic: Resolution 2024-02, Amending the Town Council's Rules of 
Order for Conducting Town Council Meetings.

Summary: 

Please see attached resolution with supporting documents.

Suggested motion:  To approve Resolution 2024-02 as presented. 

Requested by:   Mayor Paritsky

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager

Meeting Date: 1/18/2024 

Agenda Item:   11-B 



MEMORANDUM 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Town Council 
From: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: January 10, 2024 
Subject: Res. 2024-02 - Amending the Town Council’s Rules of Order for Conducting Town 

Council Meetings 

MEETING DATE: January 18, 2024 

This resolution has been prepared pursuant to Council discussion at the December 18, 2023 
Town Council Meeting to modify the Council’s Rules of Order.  These changes are described as 
follows:  

1. Under Section 1 – Meetings (starting on Page 2, Line 34), the Council meeting start time
is proposed to be changed from 6:00 p.m. to 2:00 p.m., unless otherwise required by State
law.

2. Under Section 3 – Order of Business (starting on Page 4, Line 80), the first “Citizens
Participation (non-agenda items)” portion of the agenda is moved toward the beginning
of the meeting, right after “Additions, Corrections, or Deletions to the Agenda” and
before “Presentations, Proclamations, and Awards.” The paragraphs that follow have
been renumbered accordingly. The former location of the Citizens Participation has been
stricken, starting on Line 107.

3. A new Section 8 – Sunset (starting on Page 10, Line 225) has been added to end these
changes after 120 days. This gives the Council four meetings to try it out, from February
through May. Note that a 90-day sunset would only provide for two meetings, based on
where the Council meetings fall on the calendar. Alternately, the Council could pick an
in-between time period like 100 days, which would take it through the April meeting.
Regardless, the Council may always decide to end the trial period sooner or later or end it
altogether. Such changes would be in the form of a new Resolution.

Item 11-B



RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 1 OF 11 

RESOLUTION  2024-02 1 
2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 3 
OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA AMENDING RESOLUTION 4 
2023-02 GOVERNING THE RULES OF ORDER FOR 5 
CONDUCTING TOWN COUNCIL MEETINGS TO CHANGE 6 
THE TIME SUCH MEETINGS BEGIN, UNLESS REQUIRED 7 
OTHERWISE BY STATE LAW, AND TO MOVE THE 8 
“CITIZENS PARTICIPATION (FOR NON-AGENDA 9 
ITEMS)” PORTION TOWARD THE BEGINNING OF THE 10 
AGENDA; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET; PROVIDING FOR 11 
CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 12 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 13 
DATE. 14 

15 
WHEREAS, to provide for more orderly meetings and to facilitate discussion of and action 16 

on public business, the Town Council adopted Resolutions 1990-08, 1994-01, 1999-09, 1999-23, 17 

2002-17, 2006-08, 2007-06, 2007-13, 2009-07, 2017-08, 2021-11, 2022-01, and 2023-02 setting 18 

out the rules of order for conducting the business of the Town of Ponce Inlet during Town Council 19 

meetings; and 20 

WHEREAS, the Town Council, desiring to support greater community engagement, 21 

resident attendance, and opportunities for citizens to participate and comment on matters during 22 

Council meetings, has determined it worthwhile to change the time its regular meetings begin, 23 

unless a different meeting time is otherwise required by State law, and to move the “Citizen’s 24 

Participation (for non-agenda items)” portion of the meeting toward the beginning of the agenda; 25 

and  26 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined it appropriate to include a three-month 27 

“sunset provision” for those amendments contemplated in this Resolution. 28 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 29 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 30 

CODING:  words underlined are additions; words stricken are deletions. 31 

Item 11-B



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 2 OF 11 

Section 1. Meetings 32 

The Town Council shall hold its regularly scheduled meeting on the third Thursday of each 33 

month beginning at 2:00 6:00 p.m. at the Town of Ponce Inlet Council Chambers, located at 4300 34 

South Atlantic Avenue, unless a different date or time is selected by a majority of the Town 35 

Council, or as otherwise may be required by State law. Any change in the date or time of the 36 

regularly scheduled meeting must be approved by the Council no later than the regularly scheduled 37 

meeting immediately preceding the rescheduled meeting. Special meetings of the Council may be 38 

held on the call of the Mayor, any two (2) of the Council members, or the Town Manager, and 39 

whenever practicable, upon no less than twenty-four (24) hours’ notice to each member and the 40 

public, pursuant to Section 3.06 of the Town Charter. Emergency meetings may be held according 41 

to State law. Individual Council members may call a special meeting by making the request to the 42 

Town Manager, who shall then inform the remaining Council members of the request. If at least 43 

one other Council member concurs with the special meeting request, the Town Manager shall 44 

schedule the meeting. To the extent possible, the Council will attempt to adjourn its meetings no 45 

later than 6:00 10:00 p.m. If the 6:00 10:00 p.m. deadline approaches before all agenda items are 46 

dealt with, then, in that event, the Mayor shall call for a vote of the Council to either extend the 47 

meeting past 6:00 10:00 p.m. or to adjourn and establish a continued meeting date and time to 48 

consider unfinished business. A majority vote of the Council shall be required to either extend or 49 

continue such meeting to a new date. In the absence of a majority vote (i.e. tie vote), the meeting 50 

will be continued to the date of the next regular Council meeting, preceding the new agenda for 51 

that meeting. 52 

Section 2. Agenda 53 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 3 OF 11 

The agenda shall be prepared by the Town Manager. All items to be placed on the agenda 54 

must be submitted to the Town Manager by noon on the Wednesday of the week preceding the 55 

meeting. Only a member of the Town Council or the Town Staff may place an item on the agenda. 56 

Any requests received from citizens for an agenda item will require a member of the Council to 57 

sponsor the item. To the extent possible, agenda items shall be accompanied by back -up material 58 

prepared by staff and/or the Council member. To ensure government transparency, all agenda 59 

items shall be accompanied by back -up material which describe the intention of the proposal; this 60 

shall be prepared by the requesting party, either staff and/or the Council member. The agenda shall 61 

be made available to each Council member on the Friday preceding the meeting. The Council shall 62 

not vote on any item unless it has been placed on the publicly noticed agenda, except in a case of 63 

an emergency or if the matter is time sensitive. 64 

Section 3. Order of Business 65 

The order of business at Town Council meetings shall proceed in a manner determined by 66 

the Town Manager which is acceptable to the Town Council, as described below. 67 

1. Call to Order. 68 

 The meeting shall be called to order at the noticed time or shortly thereafter. 69 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 70 

 The Mayor shall lead attendees in the Pledge. 71 

3. Roll Call. 72 

 There shall be a determination of quorum and notation of members present for the 73 

record. 74 

4. Additions, Corrections, or Deletions to the Agenda. 75 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 4 OF 11 

 Any requests from the Town Council or Town Manager for any additions, 76 

corrections, or deletions to the agenda are considered under this item. The Town Council will then 77 

vote on any changes to the noticed agenda or, in the absence of any changes, the Town Council 78 

will vote to accept the agenda as noticed. 79 

5. Citizens Participation (for non-agenda items). 80 

 Each citizen wishing to address the Council under this agenda item on a subject 81 

which is not on the agenda must submit his/her name, address, and the subject to be discussed, at 82 

the beginning of the meeting to the Town Clerk. The presentation by the citizen shall be limited to 83 

one appearance for a duration not to exceed five (5) minutes, unless a majority of the Council feels 84 

some other time limit is appropriate – as determined by vote of the Town Council. If the Council 85 

decides that a matter arising during Citizen’s Participation requires further review and discussion 86 

that cannot take place at that meeting, the matter shall be referred to Town staff and placed on a 87 

subsequent agenda. All questions from citizens shall be directed to the Mayor. 88 

6. Presentations, Proclamations, and Awards. 89 

 Authorized presentations, proclamations, and awards are given under this portion 90 

of the meeting, but no voting shall occur. 91 

76. Consent Agenda. 92 

 The Town Manager will place items within this portion of the meeting that do not 93 

warrant detailed discussion or require individual action by the Town Council. No public hearings, 94 

ordinances, or resolutions may be placed on the consent agenda. 95 

87. Old/New Business Items Preferred at the Beginning of the Meeting. 96 

 Examples of the types of items that would be placed on this portion of the agenda 97 

include volunteer board appointments and any matter for which one of the Town’s external 98 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 5 OF 11 

consultants is to be present for delivery (audit, engineering reports, etc.…). Items may also be 99 

placed on this portion of the agenda if the item is anticipated to generate above average citizen 100 

interest. 101 

98. Public Hearings on Quasi-Judicial Matters. 102 

 Certain ordinances, special exceptions variances, and permits are quasi-judicial 103 

matters. Council members should disclose any ex-parte communications concerning any items on 104 

this portion of the agenda. Disclosure can be made prior to the time of voting. 105 

109. Public Hearings on Non-Quasi-Judicial Matters. 106 

10. Citizens Participation (for non-agenda items). 107 

 Each citizen wishing to address the Council under this agenda item on a subject 108 

which is not on the agenda must submit his/her name, address, and the subject to be discussed, at 109 

the beginning of the meeting to the Town Clerk. The presentation by the citizen shall be limited to 110 

one appearance for a duration not to exceed five (5) minutes, unless a majority of the Council feels 111 

some other time limit is appropriate – as determined by vote of the Town Council. If the Council 112 

decides that a matter arising during Citizen’s Participation requires further review and discussion 113 

that cannot take place at that meeting, the matter shall be referred to Town staff and placed on a 114 

subsequent agenda. All questions from citizens shall be directed to the Mayor. 115 

11. Ordinances (First Reading) and Resolutions. 116 

 First reading of any ordinances and resolutions that are not otherwise determined 117 

to be a public hearing / quasi-judicial item are placed on this portion of the agenda. 118 

12. Old Business. 119 

 Old Business is defined as a topic which has been placed on an agenda of any of 120 

the three (3) regular Town Council meetings prior to the current meeting. 121 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 6 OF 11 

13. New Business. 122 

 New Business is defined as a topic which has not been placed on an agenda of any 123 

of the three (3) regular Town Council meetings prior to the current meeting. 124 

14. From the Town Council. 125 

 Each member of the Town Council, in reverse seat order (5,4,3,2,1), is provided an 126 

opportunity to share information under this item. The type of information generally heard at this 127 

portion of the meeting includes reports from various committees on which they serve, or recent 128 

experience as it relates to something concerning the Town’s government operation or special 129 

events. Voting may occur under this section but only as it relates to preparing an item for 130 

consideration at a future meeting or for selecting the date for a future meeting. 131 

15. From the Town Manager. 132 

 The Town Manager is provided an opportunity to share information under this item 133 

regarding the Town’s operations, calendar of events, etc. Voting may occur under this section but 134 

only as it relates to preparing an item for consideration at a future meeting or for selecting the date 135 

for a future meeting. 136 

16. From the Town Attorney. 137 

 The Town Attorney is provided an opportunity to share information under this item 138 

regarding legal matters to include any pending / current litigation or any changes in legislation or 139 

court rulings that are pertinent to the Town’s government operations and for which the Town may 140 

be asked to consider acting upon. Voting may occur under this section but only as it relates to 141 

preparing an item for consideration at a future meeting or for selecting the date for a future meeting. 142 

17. Citizens Participation (for issues raised during reports). 143 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 7 OF 11 

 The subject matters during this participation period shall be limited to matters 144 

raised or addressed during the reports of the Town Council, Town Manager, or Town Attorney. 145 

The presentation by the citizen shall be limited to one appearance for a duration not to exceed two 146 

(2) minutes, unless a majority of the Council feels some other time limit is appropriate – as 147 

determined by vote of the Town Council. If the Council decides that a matter arising during 148 

Citizen’s Participation requires further review and discussion that cannot take place at that 149 

meeting, the matter shall be referred to Town staff and placed on a subsequent agenda. All 150 

questions from citizens shall be directed to the Mayor. 151 

18. Adjournment. 152 

 The Mayor may simply adjourn the meeting without a motion for such. Any contest 153 

to such adjournment may be made by motion, requires a second, and majority vote. 154 

Section 4. Conduct of the Meeting155 

At all times the Town Council shall act in accordance with the Constitution and the laws 156 

of the State of Florida, the charter and ordinances of the Town of Ponce Inlet and the resolutions 157 

of the Town Council. 158 

The Mayor shall preside at each meeting. All business shall be addressed to the Mayor as 159 

the Chairman and presiding officer. The Mayor shall be charged with the duty of enforcing the 160 

rules of order as set forth in this resolution. In the event that the Council disagrees with the decision 161 

of the Mayor, a majority vote of the Council shall be binding. In the event a decision cannot be 162 

reached by the Council as to the manner of proceeding on any matter, the Council may call upon 163 

the Town Attorney to provide advice under Roberts' Rules of Order to assist in making a final 164 

determination. 165 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 8 OF 11 

In accordance with Section 3.03 of the Town Charter, the Vice-Mayor shall serve as Mayor 166 

in the absence or disability of the Mayor. 167 

Each agenda item shall begin with an introduction by the Mayor, a staff member, 168 

consultant, or the requesting Council member. The Council will then have the opportunity for a 169 

preliminary discussion of the item. Then, the Mayor shall allow for public input on each agenda 170 

item, prior to a motion being made and seconded by the Council. 171 

Each citizen wishing to address the Council concerning an agenda item shall state his/her 172 

name and address prior to beginning his/her discussion. Citizens shall be limited to one appearance 173 

on each agenda item and may not speak for more than five (5) minutes, unless a majority of the 174 

Council feels some other time limit is appropriate. All questions from the public should be 175 

addressed to the Mayor. Not all questions will be able to be answered immediately but after-176 

meeting follow-up responses from staff will occur whenever possible. 177 

After all members of the public who wish to speak on the item are afforded the opportunity, 178 

the Council will then discuss the item, make a motion, if deemed appropriate, possibly further 179 

deliberate the issue, and then take the final appropriate action. 180 

All motions shall be made in accordance with the guidelines of Roberts Rules of Order, 181 

except that the Mayor shall be entitled to make a motion or second a motion without passing the 182 

gavel. Any Council member requesting an amendment to the motion may make such an 183 

amendment if the members making the motion and the second have no objections. Otherwise, all 184 

amendments shall be made by a motion to amend. 185 

Section 5. Decorum 186 

 No person attending Town Council meetings shall be allowed to make obscene, vulgar, or 187 

abusive remarks, nor shall any person be allowed to make repetitive remarks so as to become 188 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 9 OF 11 

disruptive to the purpose of the meeting. No person shall be allowed to become violent, aggressive, 189 

belligerent, or boisterous. Any such person shall be instructed by the Mayor to cease making such 190 

remarks or engaging in such improper conduct. If the person fails to comply with the Mayor’s 191 

instruction, (s)he may be removed from the Council Chambers upon the Mayor’s directive, unless 192 

a majority of Council grants such person permission to remain in Council Chambers. 193 

It shall be the duty of the Chief of Police or a member of the Police Department acting as 194 

sergeant-at-arms to forcibly evict, if necessary, any person from the Council Chambers upon the 195 

order of the Mayor or Council at any such meeting. The sergeant-at-arms shall carry out all orders 196 

and instructions given by the Mayor for the purpose of maintaining order and decorum at the 197 

Council meeting. 198 

Section 6. Minutes 199 

Minutes of each Town Council meeting shall be taken. These minutes shall contain a brief 200 

summary of all matters discussed and action taken. Motions and subsequent votes shall be clearly 201 

set out so as to be easily locatable within the Minutes. 202 

Section 7. Ex-Parte Communications 203 

 In accordance with Section 286.0115, Florida Statutes, adherence to the following 204 

procedures shall remove the presumption of prejudice from ex-parte communications with Town 205 

Council members. 206 

(a) The substance of any ex-parte communication with a Council member which relates 207 

to a quasi-judicial action pending before the Council member is not presumed prejudicial to the 208 

action if the subject of the communication and the identity of the person, group, or entity with 209 

whom the communication took place is disclosed and made a part of the record before final action 210 

on the matter. 211 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 10 OF 11 

(b) A Council member may read a written communication from any person. However, 212 

a written communication that relates to quasi-judicial action pending before the Council member 213 

shall not be presumed prejudicial to the action and such written communication shall be made a 214 

part of the record before final action on the matter. 215 

(c) Council members may conduct investigations and site visits and may receive expert 216 

opinions regarding quasi-judicial action pending before them. Such activities shall not be 217 

presumed prejudicial to the action if the existence of the investigation, site visit, or expert opinion 218 

is made a part of the record before final action on the matter. 219 

(d) Disclosure made pursuant to paragraphs (a), (b), and (c) must be made before or 220 

during (preferably at the beginning of) the public meeting at which a vote is taken on such matters, 221 

so that persons who have opinions contrary to those expressed in the ex-parte communication are 222 

given a reasonable opportunity to refute or respond to the communication. This section does not 223 

subject Council members to part III of chapter 112 for not complying with this subsection. 224 

Section 8. Sunset. 225 

 The amendments contained in this Resolution 2024-02 shall sunset and be of no further 226 

force and effect as of midnight on the 120th day after the effective date of this Resolution unless 227 

prior to such date the Town Council shall vote in the affirmative to continue such amendments in 228 

effect. In the event the Town Council does not continue the amendments in effect, all provisions 229 

that preexisted this Resolution 2024-04 which are not amended herein shall remain in full force 230 

and effect. 231 

Section 9. Conflicting Resolutions  232 

All resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 233 

 Section 10. Severability 234 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
PAGE 11 OF 11 

 If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution is held to be invalid or 235 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that holding in no way affect the remaining 236 

portion of this Resolution. 237 

 Section 11. Effective Date 238 

 This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 239 

 It was moved by Councilmember _____________ and seconded by Councilmember 240 

______________ that said Resolution be adopted. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said 241 

motion resulted as follows: 242 

   Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1        243 

   Councilmember Milano, Seat #2     244 

   Councilmember White, Seat #3      245 

   Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4     246 

   Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5      247 

 Passed this 18th day of January 2024. 248 

 249 
       Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 250 
 251 
 252 
      ________________________________  253 
      Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor   254 

  255 
ATTEST: 256 
 257 
 258 
______________________________ 259 
Kim Cherbano, CMC  260 
Town Clerk 261 



Report to Town Council 

Topic: Adoption of Town Council Goals for FY 23-24 and FY 24-25 

Summary: 

Please see attached resolution with supporting documents. 

Suggested motion: To approve Resolution 2024-03 as presented. 

Requested by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager

Agenda Item: 11-C 

Meeting Date: 1/18/2024 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar 

To: Town Council 
From: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: January 10, 2024 
Subject: Res. 2024-03 – Adoption of Town Council Goals for FY 23-24 and FY 24-25 

MEETING DATE:   December 18, 2023 

At the December 18, 2023 Town Council meeting, the Council reviewed the status of the goals 
and projects that Town staff had been working on over the past year. The list showed which 
projects had been started, completed, or not yet begun. It also included new projects prioritized 
by the Council mid-year, those necessitated by state legislation and other mandates, and new 
goals proposed by staff. 

The updated goals for the remainder of FY 23-24 and FY 24-25 are attached to the proposed 
resolution. The goals that have been completed have been removed from this list and attached 
separately to this memo. As agreed by the Town Council, the goals which have since become on-
going standard operating procedure are considered “completed” once initiated.  

As always, it is our intention to focus on the goals that are important to you. If you have any 
additions, changes, or deletions to make to this list, please provide that direction at this time and 
we will make those adjustments.  

Attachment 
Completed Goals, 2022-2023  

Item 11-C



COMPLETED GOALS 2022-2023 

Cultural Services 

1. Provide support to the project manager to facilitate the construction and repair of the
existing rip-rap revetment at Elber’s Sunset Park by June 2023.
COMPLETED. March 2023

2. Facilitate the installation of four new shade structures at Timothy Pollard Memorial Park
pickleball courts for use by June 2023.
COMPLETED. August 2023

3. Grow the Town’s volunteer roster by 5%.
COMPLETED. September 2023

4. New for 2023: Prepare an ordinance modifying existing criteria for co-sponsorship of
special events to support Council’s decision to approve or deny co-sponsorship requests.
COMPLETED. August 2023 - Ordinance 2023-03

5. New for 2023: Revise special event permit application to accommodate for the new mobile
food vendor ordinance and create a new co-sponsorship request letter form for a more
efficient process.
COMPLETED. September 2023

6. New for 2023: Plan and host a celebration event for the Town’s 60th anniversary of
incorporation.
COMPLETED. September 2023

Finance 
1. Monitor investments to ensure a stable return with a high level of protection against loss.

COMPLETED. NOW ON-GOING. Investments are reviewed on a monthly basis. The Town’s
FDIC-insured investments produced a profitable return in FY 22/23. The Town received over
$233,395 in interest income revenue in that period. This is $196k over adopted budget
projections and $200,500 over revenue received in FY 21/22.

2. Ensure compliant use and reporting of American Rescue Program Act (ARPA) funds.
COMPLETED. NOW ON-GOING. The Town is compliant with reporting requirements and
use of all ARPA funding. The Town consults with a subject matter expert, Witt O’Brien’s, to
ensure we continue to remain in compliance.

3. Ensure proper reporting requirements are met for all county, state and federal grants
received by the town with assistance related from departments and consultants as needed.
COMPLETED. NOW ON-GOING. The Town has met all reporting requirements and is
currently compliant with all county, state, and federal grants that have been received. The
Town uses two consultants to assist with this process, Brooks and Dunn and Witt O’Brien’s.

4. Continue to meet/exceed audit reporting requirements set by the state.
COMPLETED. NOW ON-GOING. For the seventh straight year, the Town received another
perfect, comment-free annual financial audit from BMC CPAs.

5. Ensure appropriate training for all finance staff and additional end users working within the
accounting/payroll software system.
COMPLETED. NOW ON-GOING. Four employees attended Tyler Connect software
training this year in May 2023 and three employees attended Tyler annual user group training
meeting in October 2023 with Tyler Technologies and other Florida municipalities that

Item 11-C



Emergency Ord. 2022-06 Page 3 

utilize the same financial software. The Town offers a software training program for new 
employees and provides existing employees with additional assistance if needed.   

Fire 
1. Continue to participate in the Volusia County patient transport program, working in

collaboration to monitor and make improvements to the program.
COMPLETED. NOW ON-GOING. Program is working very well, with the department
transporting over 500 patients this year as of 11-30-23.

2. New for 2023. Research the subject of electrical vehicle fires and the preparedness of
emergency response staff to handle them.
COMPLETED. A great deal of public discussion was held over the possible impact of EV
fires in Ponce Inlet. The department published its research and other helpful information on
the Town’s website and modified its operational guidelines.

Human Resources / Town Clerk 
Human Resources 

1. Continue to prioritize succession planning for positions within the Town.
COMPLETED. NOW ON-GOING within each department.

2. Expand cross-training focus to ensure redundancy in staff capabilities for key positions and
functions.
COMPLETED. NOW ON-GOING within each department.

Town Clerk 
1. Expand outreach efforts to increase citizen participation in the governance process.

COMPLETED. NOW ON-GOING. Regular Town Hall events and public meetings are being
scheduled throughout the year.

2. Continue to attract and retain volunteer board members.
COMPLETED. NOW ON-GOING. Vacancies are advertised through social media, announced
during public meetings, and solicited during annual Community Day and FL City Government
week events.

3. New for 2023. Modify the number of Alternate members to the Essential Services Advisory
Board, increasing it from two to five, one for each Regular seat and professional specialty;
and adding each member’s discipline to the Town website.
COMPLETED – November 2023, Ord. 2023-05.

Information Technology 

1. Maintain and enhance the town’s network systems to ensure reliability.
COMPLETED.

2. Perform and provide end-user training for the security of the town’s technology investment.
COMPLETED/ON-GOING. Annual commitment.

3. Maintain & enhance technology as needed town-wide for organizational efficiency and
reliability.
COMPLETED/ON-GOING. Evaluated annually.

4. Serve as liaison for all town departments in research, understanding, and procurement of
technology solutions.



Emergency Ord. 2022-06  Page 4 
 
 

COMPLETED/ON-GOING. Annual commitment. 

5. Modernize the Town’s phone system. 
COMPLETED. 

6. Increase in bandwidth and redundancy of internet and data connectivity. 
COMPLETED. 

7. New for 2023. Upgrade and modernize two Domain Controller Server(s). 
COMPLETED. 

8. New for 2023. Council Chambers A/V Project; upgrade the presentation displays and 
enhancements to audio solution.  
COMPLETED. 

9. New for 2023. – Implement technology for new Conference Room, including computer and 
conference monitor, wi-fi, and numerical key pad entry lock.  
COMPLETED. 

10. New for 2023. Apply for FL[DS] grant and deploy seven cyber-security solutions.  
COMPLETED. 

11. New for 2023. – Restructure and clean up the Town’s Active Director Service(s) 
COMPLETED. 

 

Planning & Development 
Building 

1. Propose workspace improvements for town hall. 
COMPLETED. The new conference room, clerks offices, and an additional office conversion 
were finished June 2023. 
 

Planning 
1. Enhance GIS data to include the town’s zoning map, future land use map, and other data 

related to future planning needs. 
COMPLETED. The Town has its own GIS now that is posted online and available to the 
public. 

2. Adopt new state requirements for home-based businesses into LUDC (Senate Bill 403). 
COMPLETED. Ordinance 2023-02, amending LUDC Section 3.23 – Home Occupations. 

 
Police 

1. Maintain department accreditation status.  
COMPLETED/ON-GOING. PIPD achieved Excelsior Level Accreditation in 2023 (passing 
5 consecutive 3-year audits) after passing an extensive audit conducted by outside agencies. 
We are the smallest agency in the State of Florida to achieve this rating.  

2. Continue & expand community policing activities to increase interactions with residents and 
businesses.  
COMPLETED/ON-GOING. In 2023 PIPD held another Meet-and-Greet event at the North 
Turn restaurant, two fraud classes, and developed a Women’s Self Defense Class. 

3. Continue a seasonal enforcement focus toward saw palmetto harvesting trespassers.  



Emergency Ord. 2022-06 Page 5 

COMPLETED/ON-GOING. In 2023, PIPD made five arrests and impounded three vehicles 
in an effort to deter this illegal activity.  

Public Works 
1. Replace two retention walls at Tina Marie Drive.

COMPLETED.



RESOLUTION 2024-03 
PAGE 1 OF 2 

RESOLUTION 2024-03 1 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 2 
OF PONCE INLET, VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 3 
ADOPTING THE GOALS OF THE TOWN FOR FISCAL 4 
YEARS 2023-2024 AND 2024-2025; PROVIDING FOR 5 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTING 6 
RESOLUTIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 7 
DATE. 8 

9 
WHEREAS, the Town Council regularly establishes and reviews a set of goals for all 10 

Town departments; and 11 
12 

WHEREAS, the Town Council’s discussion of these goals at its meeting on December 13 
18th, 2023 resulted in a consensus of priorities and direction for each of the Town’s departments. 14 

15 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 16 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA: 17 
18 

Section 1. Adoption of Town Goals for Fiscal Years 2023-2024 and 2024-2025. The 19 
Town Goals attached hereto are hereby adopted for Fiscal Years 2023-2024 and 2024-2025. 20 

21 
Section 2. Conflicting Resolutions. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 22 

Resolution is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that 23 
holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 24 

25 
Section 3. Severability. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are 26 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 27 
28 

Section 4. Effective Date. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 29 
30 

It was moved by Councilmember ______________ and seconded by Councilmember 31 
______________ that said Resolution be adopted.  A roll call vote of the Town Council on said 32 
motion resulted as follows: 33 

34 
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 ______ 35 
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 ______ 36 
Councilmember White, Seat #3  ______ 37 
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 ______ 38 
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 ______ 39 

40 
Passed this 18th day of January 2024. 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 

Item 11-C



 
RESOLUTION 2024-03 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

      Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 45 
 46 
     ________________________________  47 
     Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor    48 

    49 
 50 
ATTEST: 51 
 52 
______________________________ 53 
Kim Cherbano 54 
Town Clerk 55 



1 

Town Council Goals 
FY 23-24 / FY 24-25  

Cultural Services 
1. Apply for grant funding to purchase and install brick fascia exterior improvements to

facilities at Davies Lighthouse Park.
2. Facilitate the installation of graphic designed vinyl wraps on utility boxes for beautification

improvements in town.
3. Develop a playground maintenance inspection checklist by July 2024.
4. Establish four new programs with specific focus on youth and senior age groups by

December 2024.
5. Recruit two additional Museum volunteers by December 2024.
6. Create a tree replenishment plan for town properties. [Moved from Public Works]

Finance 
1. Seek grant opportunities for shovel-ready septic-to-sewer projects, in accordance with the

town’s sewer master plan.
2. Applies to all town departments: seek grant opportunities for capital purchases and projects,

where feasible.
3. Create internal procedures and processes for grant application and compliance.

Fire 
1. Continue efforts toward fire department accreditation with completion of the Self-

Assessment Manual (SAM) and achievement of Candidate status with the accrediting body,
the Center for Public Safety Excellence (CPSE).

2. Review public safety programs and presentations offered by the department for potential
enhancements.

3. Complete interior station modifications to accommodate additional firefighters.

Human Resources / Town Clerk 
Human Resources 

1. Facilitate providing education and training to all Town employees for personal growth and
enhanced work performance.

2. Continue to enhance efforts to attract and retain a talented, diverse, and energized workforce
to meet the needs of the Town.

3. Implement an Employee Benefit platform for staff.
4. Review and update the Employees Rules, Regulations, and Benefits Handbook as needed to

clearly outline the Town’s policies and expectations to minimize the risk of non-compliance,
and ensure that the Town is following the most current legal requirements.

Town Clerk 
1. Create an online board member/volunteer application submittal process.
2. Explore ways to increase efficiency of public records management.

Information Technology 
1. Develop and deliver EndPoint technology lifecycle program by September 2025.

Item 11-C



Page 2 of 3 

2. Ensure an understanding of the interconnectivity and function of the town’s primary software
systems (e.g., Tyler, InCode, & Energov) for enhanced vendor accountability and to ensure
software is performing to published standards.

3. Expand the use of security cameras on town owned properties.
4. Create and enact a Cybersecurity framework and develop an Information Technology and

Cybersecurity Policy.

Planning & Development 
Code Enforcement 

1. Explore ways to increase efficiency of all code enforcement operations, including creation of
Standard Operating Procedures in 2024.

2. Implement online application and payment process for annual rental permits.
3. Pursue foreclosure on outstanding Code Enforcement liens for non-homestead properties.

Building 
1. Implement online payment process for building permits and business tax receipts.
2. Implement electronic online permitting process, including plan review software and ADA-

compliant permit applications, checklists, forms, and procedures.
3. Complete the Watershed Master Plan.
4. Work with the Town’s engineering consultants to review and potentially modify drainage,

grading, and building elevation requirements to ensure that stormwater runoff from new
development and redevelopment does not inappropriately impact adjacent properties.

5. Set up and maintain a contractor licensing database in response to changes in Florida Statutes
and resultant phasing out of Volusia County’s countywide database.

6. Update maps and other documentation for the next Community Rating System (CRS) cycle
visit - evaluation of how the Town manages its flood-related concerns.

7. Following completion of Watershed Master Plan, initiate efforts to improve CRS rating to
Class 4 or lower.

8. Initiate Building Division accreditation process.
9. Achieve Permit Tech certification for permitting staff.

Planning 
1. Complete adjustment of the town’s western waterway boundary.
2. Work with Volusia County Traffic Engineering, FDOT, and the R2C-TPO to complete the

design & engineering for the S. Peninsula sidewalk project.
3. Review tree removal regulations related to tree removal, trimming, permitting, bonding of

tree removal companies, fees, fines, and mitigation - to ensure sufficient deterrent exists to
discourage removal of specimen trees.

4. Continue planning and community engagement efforts with long-term goals aimed toward
coastal resiliency in response to sea level rise, including an Adaptation Action Plan and
related amendments to the comprehensive plan and LUDC.

5. Complete amendments to the comprehensive plan based on the Evaluation and Appraisal
Report (EAR), as required by state law.

6. Complete the town-wide traffic study and policy amendments for bicycle and pedestrian
safety, as required for the 2022 EAR and subsequent EAR-based amendments.

7. Complete the update to the Water Supply Work Plan and related comprehensive plan
amendments, as required by state law.



Page 3 of 3 

8. Work with Volusia County for intersection safety improvement proposals at Harbor Village
Boulevard (both for Atlantic & Peninsula). [Shared with Police Department]

9. Work with the FWC to reduce boat speeds in the Halifax River.
10. Continue research into the subject of electrical vehicles and public charging stations,

including a community survey.

Police 
1. Increase police reporting of code enforcement violations occurring after-hours.
2. Work with Volusia County for intersection safety improvement proposals at Harbor Village

Boulevard and S. Atlantic Ave. [Shared with Planning Division]
3. Purchase a Public Safety Vessel and train police and fire employees to operate it.

Public Works 
1. Develop a proactive multi-year maintenance schedule for town properties, to include

buildings, parks, sidewalks, roads, and stormwater drainage facilities.
2. Ensure the town’s utility infrastructure receives properly scheduled maintenance, with

emergencies promptly addressed and customers appropriately notified.
3. Work with FPL to ensure proper trimming/ pruning of trees.
4. Seek resiliency grants for purchases of low-lying properties to improve stormwater drainage.
5. Complete rate study and implement new stormwater utility fee.



Report to Town Council 

Topic: From the Town Manager 

Summary: Please see attached report. 

Requested by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 1/18/2024 

Agenda Item:   15 



MEMORANDUM 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Town Council 
From: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: January 11, 2024 
Subject: Town Manager’s Report 

MEETING DATE: January 18, 2024 

1. The Town has been working diligently with staff from the Volusia County Coastal Division
to secure temporary easements from select beachfront property owners to support the
upcoming dredging and beach restoration project. At this time, easements from more than
half of the property owners have been executed and recorded. The remaining owners have
been contacted, and most of the remaining easements are expected to be turned in the next
two weeks. The County’s deadline with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to secure all
necessary easements is February 29, 2024.

2. County Council updates, January 4, 2024 meeting:

• Item F – County staff is embarking on a public engagement campaign as part of its
ongoing Vulnerability Assessment about, “…how that information can be used to
identify public infrastructure at risk from future threats and to secure grant funding to
mitigate those risks.” This was first presented at the Elected Officials Roundtable on
January 8th, with additional workshops to follow in February through April.

• Item L – This Resolution waives the County’s 4-foot dune requirement for new
beachfront seawall construction in Ponce Inlet. The waiver is being granted for
properties that provide a temporary pipeline or work area easement to the County
before February 29, 2024 for the upcoming beach restoration project. The current
temporary deferment expires on December 31, 2024. The new resolution applies
retroactively to beach permit applications received or approved on September 27,
2022.

• Item 5 – The County Council passed on first reading a nine-month moratorium on
development applications in Heavy Industrial (I-2) zoned properties. This action is
related to the proposed Belvedere Fuel Farm near Ormond Beach, in an effort to

Item 15

https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240104/agenda.htm
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240104/Item-F-11446.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240104/Item-L-11441.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240104/Item-05-11448.pdf


2 

provide County staff time to evaluate and amend permitted and special exception uses 
to minimize impacts on surrounding properties. The company has filed a lawsuit in 
response. 

3. Building permit update: Total permit applications for the year is 1,575, with 235 being 
related to hurricane repair. The typical average is approximately 100 permits per month or 
1,200 per year. 

 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Avg 

Permit 
applications 

119 176 186 133 159 164 120 121 108 120 86 83 131 

Permits issued 144 104 160 141 138 144 148 114 108 120 69 80 123 

Plan reviews 87 166 183 138 152 134 157 115 117 112 105 94 130 

Inspections 295 235 403 319 289 323 233 320 293 347 278 235 298 

 

 


	REGULAR MEETING
	7-A CEB appointment.pdf
	7-A CEB appointments
	7-A Cover Sheet

	7-A Staff Report
	Karen Rij CEB application

	7-B Planning Board appointments.pdf
	item 7-B
	item 7-B
	Revak application
	Young application

	9-A MSC Expansion.pdf
	9-A MSC Lrng Ctr Expansion TC Staff Report FINAL (005)
	From: Mike Kaszuba <michaeljkaszuba@gmail.com>  Sent: Tuesday, December 19, 2023 10:28 AM To: Debbie Stewart <dstewart@ponce-inlet.org> Cc: Mike Disher <mdisher@ponce-inlet.org>; Lois Paritsky <lparitsky@ponce-inlet.org> Subject: Marine Science Center...

	9-A Proof of Publication - FDP 37-2023

	11-A Res. 2024-01 (FLOC).pdf
	11-A Mayor Memo FLC & Res 2023-01 01-19-23.pdf
	https://floridaleagueofcities.com/advocacy-pages/policy-committees
	(1)  FINANCE, TAXATION & PERSONNEL
	(3)  MUNICIPAL ADMINISTRATION
	(4)  TRANSPORTATION & INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS
	This committee addresses municipal concerns relating to transportation and highway safety, as well as aviation, affordable housing (and homelessness), billboards, building codes, charter schools, rights-of-way and veterans affairs.
	(5)  UTILITIES, NATURAL RESOURCES & PUBLIC WORKS

	ADPC029.tmp
	(1)  FINANCE, TAXATION & PERSONNEL
	(3)  MUNICIPAL ADMINISTRATION
	(4)  TRANSPORTATION & INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS
	This committee addresses municipal concerns relating to transportation and highway safety, as well as aviation, affordable housing (and homelessness), billboards, building codes, charter schools, rights-of-way and veterans affairs.
	(5)  UTILITIES, NATURAL RESOURCES & PUBLIC WORKS


	11-B Res. 2024-02  (Rules of Order).pdf
	13-A Cover Sheet
	13-B  Staff Memo LAP Council Rules of Order - final
	Res 2023-02 (amending Res 2022-01 re add'l citizen participation)
	ADPB711.tmp
	RESOLUTION  2024-02
	Section 7. Ex-Parte Communications
	Passed this 18PthP day of January 2024.
	Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida
	ATTEST:

	ADP20D4.tmp
	RESOLUTION  2024-02
	Section 7. Ex-Parte Communications
	Passed this 18th day of January 2024.
	Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida
	ATTEST:


	11-C Res. 2024-03 (Council Goals).pdf
	Summary:
	ADP674.tmp
	while ensuring Ponce Inlet obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar

	ADP86E1.tmp
	Passed this 18th day of January 2024.
	Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida
	ATTEST:


	15 - Town Managers Report.pdf
	15- Cover Sheet
	15 -TOWN MANAGER Announcements - revised - 12-18-23




